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DePue Today is Thursday, December 10, 2009. My name is Mark DePue, the Director
of Oral History at the Abraham Lincoln Presidential Library and | am in
Macomb today talking taEllyn Bartges. Good morning.

Bartges Good morning.
DePue: Tell us exactly where we are in Macomb.

Bartges:L i t er a |l | yLeslieF. Madpaskilraryt—hpe the fifth floor in the
guiet room where we can talk uninterruptedn Western lllinois Unive s i t vy’ s
campus.

DePue: Why are we her&llyn?

BartgesWe’ r e here to discuss an oral history <co
Master’'s program on’'badkdtbalnoi s Hi gh School

DePue: Tell us what your positiors here at the University.

Bartges: | am currently an Assistant Equal Opportunity Offieem d it ' s part of t
Pr es i de nlitdd asvariéty df things thatouwould expect from an
Affirmative Action Officer. | monitor hiringhandle complaints, do
investigationsand provideesources and training, those kinds of things.

DePue: And | understand you are not long for these parts?
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No, |l > m not . We are movi acgeptéedo St . Cl oud
Director position at St. Cloud State University in their Equity andriitive
Action Office. | start JanuarySof 201Q so not too many days from now.

Excellent. The reason | wanted to do this interview is because you and | first
encountered each other at the Oral History Association conference down in

Louisville, Kentucky and you made a presentation about a series of interviews

you conducted If we could be the archive fohatcollection of interviews, that

would be great, but | thought it would be very useful to anybody who is

approaching that collection toé&w a little bit about yourselivhy you got into

that i n the first place and your reflect
going to be doing more with that in terms of publicatjdngould think down

the road.We want tohear your impressiorsf t hat first hand but
take us a while to get to that part of t
When and where were you born?

I was born in LaGrange, lllinois, a Sunday January24, 1960.
Okay. And did you gow up in LaGrange?

No, I grew up in Hinsdale, lllinois which is the town one or two over from
LaGrange.

What were your parents doing for a living?

My mother was a speech pathologist and she was also the Director of
Admissions athie Avery Cooley School in Downers Grove, which is a private
school for gifted children. My father worked with a large orthopedic group up
on the north side of Chicago, thediss Surgical Group His graduate degree
was in physical therapy from the Unigéy of lowa but he probably did what

would today be called a physician’s assi
to be.

Something of a pioneer in that field?

Very much so | think. l > m nongs.eHract |l y s

did cast work.They let him work in surgery. They let him do a lot of stuff,

such ashe took histories and worked up patienBeme of the same stuff that

these people do now but it certainly was
ever had title.

Okay. Did you have any siblings?

| have one brotheKurt Bartges. He is two and a half years older than me.
And he lives in Ramsey, Minnesota.

Okay. What was it like growing up in the Bartges family?
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Bartges:It was \ery competitive (laugh). Even though my Mom never played sports, she
was always pretty game to try things, usually to her detriment. | can remember
one time | wanted to play catch and my b
wasn’'t around. pl3he wsaihd mehe wouwlidn’t tt
baseballl just assumed everybody could catch. | could catch. | had been
taught how to do t hose tnittiomapdthedald my Mo m
hit her right inthe face. Slilei dn’ t know fitoTwatwasavwerye t he m

short | ived game of catch. But we’'re ve
everything was Kill or be killed. There was not a lot of mgsoymy parents
didn’t | et us win at things. Mye Dad was

guarterback and the punter at the West Virginia University and played baseball.
He was drafted by the Dodgers and the Pirates and one of his funniest stor
waswhenhe went to Dodger training camp

DePue: What was his name?
Bartges:Kent Bartges.
DeRue: Okay. Go ahead.

Bartges:He was a first basemarh e & lsfty—and he went to Dodgers training camp
The first day he got hit with a line drive in the face and had all of his front teeth
knocked outHe said the trainer came out with a bucket, swishedeeth
around—you know, picked them out of thdirt—swishedhis teeth around in the
bucket and jammed them back up into his face. His teeth were fine. | mean he
was in his fifties before he needed dentures or whatever you call them, bridges.
But atthat pointhedecided he @hetter go back to school, whieres probably a
good idea.

DePue: You mean he didn’t spend much time in th
Bartges:No. (laugh)
DePue: After that, that was the end of it?

BartgessThat was enough f o wholhasaid hitthé balbubhe satd r e me mb

he really got plastered and he realized
survive at that distance. So, you know, he was very much about exposing us to
sports. Whether it was outdoor sports, athletigsuk now, t here’ s a di

between sports and athletiesndhewanted us to be competitive. | mean he
came from a generation that felt that competitiveness was what made Americans
great and he still believes that.

DePue: Was he ever in the military?

Bartges:No. HewastF* d f or t he Korean War.
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DePue: Okay. You talk about how competitive you all were. | have this vision of your
Dad in the backyard throwing the ball to you.

BartgessThat ' s a g o did pekcepson af girls & sporeste twa willing to
| et me play around but he wasn’'t interes
Dads today that are really invested in their daughters and they go and do the
softball circuit or do the summer basketball ApAmateur Athletic Union]
thing. lwas a retriever, because my Dad was a kicker. He wanted my brother
to be a kicker and so | always gotshag balls or be the catcher, you know. If
Dad was throwing to Kurt, | had to play catcher and get the ball back to him so
that Kurt could have hiitg practice. So it was sort of a crude batting cadgs.
reward was always-sayin batting practiceé would get five pitches at the end
when Kurt was done artiey were ready to gemy Dad says Okay, you get
five pitches. | t doohews bad they armor anyghing wher e t
else. If you hit them, you hit them. Ifyouloaki t , t hat ' s one of yo
So | learned very young how to hit. | could get my bat on anything and when |
was coachingmy players used to try and make me misslh ligut | can get
my bat on just about anything.

And the same with kicking. | loved to kick a football, loved it. And | got
three kicks and it was the last three because my brother would kick the balls and
| would be out shagging them, you know, fiftgrds away and then instead of
running them back or throwing them back, | was allowed to kick them. | could
kick them back to my Dad and my brother. But that was his idea of me being
athletic We grew up swimming competitively and that was acceptablgirs.

DePue: Okay.
BartgessAnd t hat was okay but that wasn’t someth
DePue: Was Kurt veryathleticas well?

BartgessNot | i ke my Dad, n o tl knowhe blwaysmtyugdlrd d° s st an
with it. He tried.

DePue: He beng Kurt, or he being your Dad?

Bartges:Both of them actually. My Dad expect&drt to be a better athlete than he was
because he had better access to healthcare. He had better access to food. |
mean, my Dad grew up in the Depression and so he usalit ttobut the food

that they used to have. And my brother
—sixfour-and my brother is big. He’ s six fo
he though Wow, you know, he could do something. And we were both

ambidextros. But Kurt, hed i dhavett hat kil l er i nstinct. F
And his kids are like that. | talk to him about hisownkittbkse s ay s, Il don’t

want to expose them to that, whet were exposed tdSo, it was a very
negative kind of competitivengfor him.
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Did you resent the fact that Kurt was getting a lot more attention in that respect
than you were?

Il don’t think | would put wotultdmat way at
way now. | think that I tried very hard taake advantage of what little

opportunity existed for me. So if my Dad said | had five pitches, | was going to

make sure | hit all five of them to show him that | could do it. And if | could

kick three balls, then | was going to kick them farther thantwwihabrother

kicked t hem. So, it wasn’'t really so mu
competition between my brother and I. Always has been.

So there was tension there?
| suppose. Il don’t know that | viewed i
A typical siding rivalry?

No, my brother and | were very close. To me theremsasvalry. To have a
rivalry you have to have competitphr om my per specti ve, I di
competition.

Why not?
Because | was better than him.
Did your Dad acknowledge that you were a better athlete?

Not in those words. Maybe down the pike he did because | went on to be

involved at a much different level of sport than my brother wag.Dad

became very involved in my sport when Isania high school because | played

on some successful teams and | was a ranked tennis player. | think my Dad had

a different appreciation for that but he never, even to this day, has lost the
perception that, Wdd’'ls vidapodmubthisdra j ust f
in that respect.

Ok ay. |l lost the thread here that | was
in high school then. Obviously you were in sports in high school.

Yeah, but that was my first exposure to organggalrts. | was a freshman in

197 4. TilellX child geally. TitleIXwas passed in June of 1¢
implemented nationaly-allt he paper wor k i sn'fiteorreal |y d
sixyears—butl ' m a freshman in 19 dwereaheasubur ban

of the curve in lllinois, thesuburbarChicago schools weréWhen you get
downstate, you didn’t <I978r t'' ' 7i5D7. Isee or gan
Chicago, they started ii73. As soon aJitle IX was passed some of these big

schml s said, Hey, okay, we’'re going to ad
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Were you conscious thaitle 1X had just passed? Did you know what that
was?

|l did, actually. Mo st ;yoewepeltwelvewBuull d s ay
was. My Mom was very astute and she was very tuned in to what was going on
politically and we talked about those thingdy partner laugbat me because |

can remember as an eight year old in 1968 having conversations with people

about Humphrey-Nixon. & | t hink it kind of just go:¢
historian. 1 just have that kind of personality and my mother was that way too.

But the sport thingl was aware oTitle 1X. | wasn’t sure, I did
the legalities. All | knew was ngunstead of beingtoldNo, you can’t pl e
because you are a girlvhich I ran in to repeatedly in my younger daysw |

knew that | was going to be able to play
meant.

Il > m going to r ethaessenceoftle lal states dnd thenletv h a t
you explain inmoredetail We | | t ake ki nd eshdutwhat asi de he
Title IXwasandisbecause it’'s so Iimportant to the
So her e’ s basi caNolpgsonwmthaWnited &tates khalwons ay s
the basis of sex, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or

be subjected to discrimination under any education program or activity
receiving federal financial assistance.

Il t ' s s o aueniplimean it camstillealmost bring tears to my eyes.

Wow. Why?
My life has been guided by those sbfour words,thirty -five, I can’
remember exactly. Everything tha

perspective and professially, has been guided hijat.

t
t

Okay. That was the opening of the door, the opportunity.

That' s exactly what it was and when you
and the two men also that | interviewed in my twesikyinterviews, aimost

without exceptior—almost,| say, because there is one for surgou will hear

the people talk about throwirgpenthe door, opening a gatigirningona light

Ther e’ s a |pbraseotdieddtit &llfarmaurdsriathe same thing that

this was — | think Charlotte West put it best, or maybe CM@elz—" N eta t

the nineteenth amendment, this is the single most important piece of legislation
affecting women in the United States in the twentieth ceritury.

And that’'s noterchweWwisitost peopl e p

No. And that really resonates with me because, as | said, | come from a family
that was very politicallppinionated My Mom was a Republican and my

Dad’ s a Democr ato.fightaboutsteffeamd sdgrieveup with s e
that (laugh | was a veryociferousreader andhterestedn all these thingsso
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thatwhen Iparticipatel in them,l recognize those points.Of all the lessons

my mother would teach me, and my grandmother too, the one that was always

most clearlydefined was the rightto vat€h at * s why tThlelX, comes i
because if the right to vote was the most important piece of legislation affecting

women in this country, thefitle IXi s t he second most . You
It s 1 mpor t,drontthe timeMwas, wellttdikeng Nixon

Humphrey in 196&s an eight year olgolitical awarenesstarted young in our

family. You went to college and you voted and if you were a woman you

better.. &u know, in Chicago you would vote twice, but, y@better be

voting—the old joke There was no excudgecause my motheand her sisters

werethe first femalsin her family a familythat h& been here since 1634ho

wereborn with the right to vote. And t hat
sent. | never miss a chance to vote.

DePue: You hadn’t mentioned your mother’s name.
BartgesMy mom’ s name was Sandra Sechler Bartges
DePue: Sandra. How do you spell her maiden name?

Bartges:S-e-c-h-l-e-r.

DePue: And you said her family had been here fortoees?

Bartges:Yeah.

DePue: Do you know the story of how they came to the United States?

Bartges:On a boat (laugh).

DePue: That ' s about it huh?

Bartges:!l t s a |l ong story. I don’t know that th

DePue: Okay. You téked a lot about your parenits’ m c¢:whoiwould you say had
the most influence on you growing up?

Bartges:T h a t
There’s good and bad infl uefmgparents. |
My mother was not &kill or be killed” kind of person. She was a little more
cerebral than thabut she was competitive in her own w&he was about
intellectual competition. But, | have to say, my father is an alcoholic and that
influencedhis interactions with the kiddt was one of those things that you
never knew dayo-day what you would be faced with. Was it the Dad that says,

“Come on, we're going to go fishing and I
how to do that Or is it going to be the Dad that rolls you out of bed at twelve

thirty at night and says,Your room is a mess, clean it ipYou know, there

was no way to judge that. So you were always kind of on edge. But I think as a

s a hard question. Real l vy, I think
"m r eal
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result of that | probably learned hdw defend myself pretty young and | think
my brother took the brunt of that because he was older and he had different sets
of expectations from my Dad, if nothing else just because he was male.

DePue: So a lot of pressure on yohrotherto be good, to siceed?

Bartges:Oh yeah. My brother is a very different personality than | am. He was much
more compliantMy Mom taught so she said,Okay, if you kids gethere

before | do, you sit on the fbecaose po
t h ahbw tiseir schedules were. My brother would sit there faithfully. Me,
Wo w, Mom’s not home, Il " m gone.

DePue: This is the question | wanted to ask about you and your brother before. You
clearly had a stronger competitive drive than your brothdr a t d ts ywdu ' v e
been tellingus Were you morathleticallygifted as well?

Bartges:lwouldsayyesl don’t know i fthinké#&hewasidnédsthe ay
would. He was a very good swimmer and he was a good tennis player. But
t hos e we rrdyrspotts thateny Basl h@ught were good mesports.

DePue: Football, baseball.

Bartges:Football, baseball, basketballhose were the sports tHaad played and Kurt
could have cared less about basketball. He played football at the high school
level but he hated it. He was miserable. | used togeigtainedor him. You
know, he would come home and there was no way he could quit.

DePue: Because of your Dad?

Bartges:Because of my DadMy Dad would call the coach up and he would be drunk
and hewould just bitch that man out about what he was dolbgd was an
aut hority on footbal!l because he had
guy who, in my Dad’ s eyes, didn’t kn
when it came to coaching footbatko, it was hard for Kurt.

DePue: What position did he play?

Bartges:He was a punter ardl e sek fse had an eighty numbeiso he would have
been a tight end.

DePue: Okay. Tell us a little bit about what you did in high school as far as
extracurricula activities.

Bartges:When | was a freshman, | had never played anything organized, like team
sports. | swam competitively as a younger child because swimming in
Hinsdale, those two things are synonymoBsit whenl got to high school and
there were allhese choicest ' s | i ke, Wow.

rch,

t hat
pl a
ow h
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DePue: Because oTitle IX?

Bartges:Because oTitle IX. Thereareno two ways about that. Fall 6f4 1 tried out
for tennis and | made it. Anyt hing .. it
able to hit anything. Wat ' s a r ac k eatwithabigderhsadao basebal
how do you not hit a tennis ballSo | played tennis at South for four years on
thevarsity. | played varsity my entire careén every sport that | played | never
played junior varsity anythingl was a doubles playawvas a conference
champion Like | said, | was a ranked tennis player in the state of lllinbis.
think my worse loss camehenl played Andrea Jaeger in a tournament up in
| want to say Whnetka— and that was a surgical egwn and she was abodt
Il > m thinking she was ma-ybbteyoutkmow,sheear s you
went on to a pretty shalived but effective professional caree8he was a good
player. So | was competing at that kind of level with tennis and mydiroth
played high school tennis. | was with a group of pet@éwent from sport to

sport to sport. And you don’'t see it as
athlete. Youjust barelyseethatou j ust donbdcauseee it any md
coaches demand thatwdedicate yourself to one sport. Instead of being jack

ofalltradss, master of none, we’'re going to ma

Philosophically | struggle with that. | played basketball and we had a very
successful basketball program. | was tryinghiok what sports | played.The
seasons were different then. Basketball was in the spring, so | played two sports
in the spring. 1 did track and field and then softball and then basketball
overlapped a little bit. So in the fall | only played tenbist tennis went kind

of late then. We sometimesgentin to November for state tournament and stuff.
But those were the four sports that | played.

DePue: The coaches were allowing you to kind of overlap these seasons a little bit?

Bartges:Oh yeah. Th coaches of these teams were all physical educators. There was
| 7 trying to think of the coaches that | haanost of them were younger so
they had a different philosophy than some of the older women in physical

educationTh at ' sfthemarthems t hat | 'fanmwPhD. &i ng on
the University of lllinois in sport historyOne of the themes is part of the
foundation of the work that |11 do with

women that were coming out of schools out of lllinois afiddis State and

schools all over the country really, had a different competitive experience than
the older women who had graduated from college inl the@nd* 5 and

moved in to physical education as a means to provide movement but they were
not necesaily in favorof competitive sport.

DePue: It sounds likeall of your coaches, or most of them, were women.

Bartges:They all were womenMe n wer en’t permitted to coach
at the high school l evel . My senior yea

DePue: Andist hat an Il |l inois policy or is that Hi
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Bartges:That was an lllinois policy. It was the IHSAthelllinois High School
Association. 't s -Noomalsed out of Bl oomin

DePue: Okay.

Bartges:When Title IX came abouthe women thapushed to have and these are the
women that | did my interviews withthese women that were refs and
administrators and coacheshroughthe state physical education association,
basicallyhadcontrol of how they wanted athletics run. Some of them were
some of the younger ones like my coaches that ‘$éid,want competitive
athletics that is similar to the male mddedhich is a common phrasethe male
model of sport- as opposed to the traditional, classic physical education model
where you had GAA dayand play days and sport days that were not
competitive experiences of teams facing each other from other schools.

DePue: GAA?
Bartges:Girls Athletic Association.
DePue: Okay.

Bartges:That was the predecessor to organized interscholastic sports angthah ot j u st
an lllinois thing. That would have been nationwigeu had GAA.

DePue:l apologize for being dense but | 'm not
you lay that out again for us?

Bartges:Y e a h, I get fuzzy wit lasawaytesoroof compete bec aus
within the school.Let s say you had an archery tour
somet hing that was called a postal tourn

other stées did it or not. But the GAAif you had an archery touament in

your schoot so Hinsdale South had an archery tournament for all the girls and

they might be divided up by classes, so freshman, sophomore, junior, senior, or

they might be a combination of classes of freshman, sophomore, junior, senior

or any mx that would compete against each other based on total points. So in
anarcherycompetiton—andi t ' s been a |l ong t+yoae si nce
just don’t even see-iéetasymayet hgone aoal
points possible and you hadesam or an individual that scored nine hundred

and ninety. You would record that score. The physical education teacher would

certify it and then send it in as part of the postal tournanfaetiools all over

the state would send their scores in and gfmenwould have a winner or a

group of people who were ranked the highest. Thatlptes me. | did not

participate in that kind of competition but a lot of the people that | talked with in

my interviews and a lot of the people who were involivelringing

competitive sport to lllinois, experienced that kind of competition and they did

not like it. They thought it was ridiculous.

DePue: Competition without actually even meeting each other in the process.

10
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Bartges:Yeah. You could do it with individuaports like swimming. You would have
that same kind of a thing. You would do swimming and you would send in
ti mes. So, It’s kind of I|ike early cybe
to be there. 't s a dif fsethiege-tndimod e | . S
struggle a little bit, | should be better at this given my backgreund play
days were something that you would have and if you listened to almost all of the
interviews | ask them about play gta and sport ds. Play days might be
where you would go and you would have five schools, or four schools come in.
For exampleyou would have Hinsdale South, Hinsdale Central, Dos/ner
[Grove] South and Downei{Grove] North. Bring all those four schools
togetherfor a basketball event. Talall the girls from those four schools, mix

them up and then | et them play each ot he
Downers South and Hinsdale Central didn’
of these people mixed up into different teams and they maynie the teams

it’s kind of | i ke a'rsotbaillehgupteay bavewi t h t he |

names like the Peaches and the Plums and they would label these teams. Okay
the Peaches are going to play the Plums obtisesare going to play the
Roses.

DePue: It almost feels like a YMCA league or something like that.

Bartges:Y e a h, I don’t know much about YMCA,
DePue: Okay.
Bartges:But, this was one way of competing. And then whenyougotdiatond | can’ t

remember if they are called sport daysiot—and you would have this kind of
experience at the collegiate level, a play day. When they got into, | think it was
sport days, then you start to see a transition so that Hinsdale (Sayed

Downers Southyr lllinois State or U of playedSouthen lllinois University.

You know, they would play other teams with their teams intact. One of the
things that | was interested in is how quickly after Title 1X did you see a change
from these play days into sport days where there was a competitiveosituati
Usually they had tournaments for monetary reasons that you would have
schools frommeighboring areas play each othEney actually had a state
championship at the collegiate level where you would have all the schools from
the statd h at h a daskethaliéeams@me together and they would do a
round robin tournamentThey tried to centrally locate those things so that

people could meet in the middle and expenses would be minimal. | experienced
this myself when | was at lowa Stateplayed temis at lowa Stateandif you

|l i sten to the stories on the tapes, it s
who are now playing sports or men who witnesseal me spbrts as they exist
now, to think of piling seven people into a station wagon, with ajlonfr

equipment, and driving four hours to a competition. Pile out of the car. Go play
your game or your match or your meet. Eat a sack lunch that you got at the
dorm before you left town to go to the competition and, by the way, you paid

for it becausat was part of your meal planThenyou get in the car and drive

11
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back four hours and be in class the next day. Never stay overnight. Not have
money for meals or very limited funds for that kind of thing. Nowadays that
would be laughable, but that wémetexperience.

DePue: Isthis the experience prior to Title IX and that change was imposed?

Bartges:No, this is the experience postitle IX. The money didn’t really
into play until early 80s (It happened prditle 1X too, but after Ttle IX was
signed into law it took time to implement.)

DePue: Okay. | have one specific question about Title IX, becatidee very end of
that phrase it’s talking about these are
assistance. tWealtl’,s |dqbiglosohodidenel baigvehk a
lot of these colleges, was it?

BartgessOh y e ah. Name me a high school, a publi
from the feds or the state.

DePue: Well certainly from the state.

Bartges:And the sta# gets money from the federal government for their school programs
so it was‘voila,” the line was drawn. The dots were connected.

DePue: Then once this | aw passes in 1972, what
your typical high school in lllinois?nlthe sports progratn

[

Bartges:Well, first you have to understand that Title IX was not passed as an athletics
act. Title IX is an educational act. It was designed to provide access to
educational opportunities f owschaahmen t hat
med schoolmathematicsscience, shop at the high school level. | was told |
couldn’t take shopthhtwaeauaét brwast hegl XI .
really wantto take shopl wanted to take woodwor king.
that. And they still told me that. So Title IX is commonrhthe perception is
wrong—thatthis is an athletics act. The people who crafted-tfiatsy Mirk,
[Congresswoman Patsy T. MinEdith Green[Congresswoman Edith Louise
Starrett Green],U.S. SenatorBirch Bayh, particularly Bayh andink.... | had
the opportunity to meet Birch Bayh a couple of times and the same thing
happened to me the first time | met him as happened to me today here when you
read that. | mean | wagrklempt | was like a babblingliot. | wanted to
thank him for what he had done because what he did impacted my life. He
doesn’t know me but what haedhdgwifl | mpact ed
were like college sweethearts and decided they wanted to be lawyers. They
were going to gao law school. Well, she applied+d think he said-tenor
twelve law schoolsShe had higher test scores, better grades, everything better
than him. She got accepted to none and he was accepted to all the schools that
he applied to.He said he couldever understand thaMink is the same way.
Sheappledt o0 s c ho ol s naimed malks were'bding aceeptedifrom
her c¢class that didn’t have theosame educ
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there was a motivation for these people to look atatn and Title 1X is the

reason why you see so many woneterinariansso many womephysicians

so many women faculty members and so many other things. Without that law,

we would not be where we are educationally. It did not take long for thegpeopl

who were in higher education to sakley, we can make this work for athletics.

All these male sport programs are getting money from appropriated fnds

why ar é ifthatgovemmentppropriated money snabling them to do

these things athleally then we should be able to do it too because of Title IX.

It didn’t takwhenyomg tati n&kl labouAnd t I don’
versed you are in the language of civil rights but the Civil Rights Act of £964

you could almost substituteond-for-word race for the wordsexor genderin

that | anguage. And that’ s intentional

DePue: Okay, soit expand the boundaries of our understanding of what civil rights is
then.

Bartges:Very much so.

DePue: My understanding of the impaot Title IX—youc an correct me when
wrong here—is that after Title IX, school districts say, Okay, we have to have a
lot more opportunities for women. Technicaitysequires arequal number of
opportunities for men and women in these sports. And so youlnags like
basketball and tennis and golf and swimming and lots of other opportunities that
maybe weren’t there before or at | east w
that be a correct observation?

Bartges:More or less. There were sports that weee acceptable for girls and women
than others. Primarily individual sportisch asswimming, gymnastics, tennis,
archery, golf. Those things were speftsot all of thembut in that genre of
sport—that the people competed in in the statdlioibi s prior to Title IX. So,
at the collegiate level, | think there was a collegiate golf championship in 1969
that Southertllinois University won. | might be wrong on the year but it was
right in that neck of the woods'69to ‘72, somewhere intherdtdi dn’t get a
lot of run becausthe media was not really tuned inboo me sports and
certainly the LPGA was founded in theb ,0nsiybe laté 4 @rsd ,so there was
precedent for women competing in those kinds of sports. Team sports were a
different mater and one athe premiseof what | did with my basketball
interviews or collection was, | wanted to know why this team sport, in
particular, basketball, was so late to be added at so many schbot&s.r e’ s a | ot
of factors that go into that. You lo@k gym space. You drive along to all these
pin-dot little towns in the state of lllinois, which are all over the place south of
the collar countiearoundChicagq and there is only one gyntlow does an
administrator decide who is goimg get gym time owhat coach is going to
give up their gym time because the girls now are sugltoseave equal gym
tme? 1t was not equal and 1’11 say that fr
provide the opportunity to compete within the constructs of minimal ingact
their male programs.
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DePue:Easier to adopt something |ike soccer wh
the facility?
BartgessSoccer didn’t exist in my frame.

DePue: Okay, so that came lateXolleyball would be much the same kind of equation
though because you are talking about gym space again.

Bartges:Yeah, butvolleyball for whatever reason, was more acceptedvatidyballwas
added before basketbalFor me personallyl think it was viewed as more of a
girlie sport, more acceptablethbra s k et bal | because boys di
volleyball

DePue: How about softball?

BartgessSoft bal | di dn’ t c¢hmkilee firat gdarifdr softballovis 1978t e r .
at Hinsdale South.

DePue: Okay.

Bartges:So, again, you have that spread. Part dfwas because school districts had to
figure out a way to allocate their funds. Part of it was because Title IX may
have been passed in 1972 but you had a great deal of pressure to try and
overturn it. The Tower Amendment, the Jayitkendmentthose thags were
i n process. This was not a done deal i n
great. No. The NCAA, which has a powerful lobby, was against it and most of
the state associations were against it as well and certainly in lllinois, the lllinois
High School Athletic Association, the IHSA, was not a strong proponent for
girls competitive interscholastic sport¥.ou can listen to four hours @fla
Bundy. | talked toOla Bundyfor a long time, and she was very
Unfortunately,shedied shortly after | iterviewed het.

(Bartges added thisote after reading the transcription and the footnote.)

Ola or her friends worked very hard to shape the narrative of her legacy.
She did great things for track & field, but was limited in what she could
achieve ashe sole femafe or one of twd in the powerful IHSAHer obit

is an e.g. of shaping the conversation.

1 Ola Bundy (19352006) tauft high school before joining the Illinois High School Association (IHSA) in

1967, starting as the Girls Athletic Association administrator. Ms. Bundy was instrumental in organizing
interscholastic competition for girls. When Title IX passed in 1972 Bdady worked diligently to help

schools comply with the letter and spirit of the law. It was often the force of her personality that convinced

high school administrators to give girls athletics a fair chance. Ms. Bundy received many honors and

awardsfo her national | eadership in the rise of girl s’
Bloomington Pantagrapi®bituaries,Feb. 21, 20086ilinois High School Associatioifhe Ola Bundy
Scholarshiphttp://www.ihsa.org/initiatives/bundyaccessed September 3, 2010).
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Her perception of girlshigh school sport in the interviews is very
different than the perception of high school sport and sports in general of other

peope, key individuals that you have acces

listen to a very reserved group of peopkhey are very polite- that say, Well,
things were not as fast as they should have ,begrthere verepeople who
thought they were doingood things in terms of getting spestarted and up
and running in the state of lllinois, but really they wieagriers Most of those
people are talking abo@la Bundy.

DePue: As a barrier?
Bartges:As a barrier.

DePue: Ok ay . Wae Signiécant asitteehere in your own personal narrative and
it was very necessary tee$h out the impact of Title IX in these early years.
And againt hat ' s t he focus of much of your

Bartges:Yeah.

DePue:But | et’ s go érasxscknadalo ryarurratoiwmwne pagai n.
four sports Are thereany highlights of your athletic career in high school?

Bartges:Yeah. The highlight for me really has to be my experience with my basketball
team. The basketball team at Hinsdale $oh . We wer e

DePue: What was the nickname?

Bartges:We were théHornetteswhich is one of those phenomena that you saw rampant
in girls’ sports such sexist language and discussions. | should bring you some
newspaper articles have a picture in mghoto album here that might actually
be here, the article. We were playing Willowbrook High School, which is again
another suburban Chicago schaoid they had a girl, | think her name was Sue
Hildebrand. She was six two and a big girl. This is hee.hdihis picture- and
t h at -this pmtere showed in the newspaper and underneath it, the title was

pr

S

“Ellyn Bartges battles behemotHrom Willowbrook” Now, wher e woul d

see that? But it was rampant in the newspapers, that kind of langliagre.

area | ot of sociological studies on that

example that you would see. The team that | played on, we had three coaches in
four years. Two of the coaches | have interviewed as part of my collection, very
differentwomen. But in 1977, which would have been my junior year, we had

a very good team. We were very talented in a time where there was not as

much concentration of talent. | was a role player, you knatarted but | was

not a scorer. | was a reboun@ded a passer. | led the team in rebounds and
assists.

DePue: Does that mean you were a forward?
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Bartges:Y e a h I was a telght.eMy vefticabwas a littlel bit mgher i v e
than our six two player, but not much. But we had two sthte kds on our
team. We were very, very fortunate. We had good talen1977, | think we
lost—in my four years of high school, we lost six games. Now the seasons were
not as |l ong as they ar egameseasonsblygouwer en’ t
know, kack then we were pretty pretty tough. We were averaging seventy two
points a game in eigithinutequarters.

DePue: Did they have a state tournament for you to go to?

Bartges:In 1977 they had the first state tournamenie highlight of this is that wevere
one of the eight teams that qualified to play in the state tournament that was
held at lllinois State University in Horton Field House.

DePue:Di d t hey have a class system for

Bartges:No. It was everybody in one pool. There was no distindi&ween A, double
A; that came later. That came probably in the €ar8/.0 s

DePue: For the boys as well?

Bartges:N o . I think the boys had classes then
much attention to it. My plate was full with otherthingsp | don’t know f
sure.

DePue: Okay.

Bartges:But we were one of the eight teams and part of this collection includes the
coaches from six of the eight teams. One of the coaches, Jan Smith from
Washington High School, had died already. She died akbi@ncer at a fairly
young ageso | interviewed her principaafellow named Ray Toryh e ons of
the two men that | interviewed can’ tt htehion kh eanferggbta c h’ s
now — Susarsomebody It will come to me. | talked to her and she sdie s
would, but there was a problem and | never got back with her for some reason
and that’' s a. Ohenpiseli have allof te other coasipSue
Franklin is her name. Y AthdeticsDirecterfat r ed now
Fenger High $hool in the city.

DePue: Fanger High School?

Bartges:Fenger- F-e-n-g-e-r, | think. Or was she at Winey Young?She coached at
Fenger and she was the AD at Whitnéyung. Fenger was the biggest upset in
the state that year. Fenger beat Marshalldityaleague championship. The
city only sent one team and the city champion was one of the eight slots for the
tournament and that was a huge upset.

DePue: How did the Hornetts do in the tournament?
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Bartges: The Hornetts suffered from a lack of coachinguite honestly.This is where
you really see how things were ruWe had one loss in a season to Joliet West
who also qualified for the state tournamafshen we qualified we won our
regional, our sectional and then we won the super sectional. Anckree
going to state. First year in the state of lllinois. The athletic director, a guy
named Ed Herzog, thought it would be a really good idea to have our boys
varsity basketball coachit on our bench and assist the gidasketball coagla
woman narad Lynre Slouber So Ed thought it would be a good idea to have
Dave Wat son, or Wil son, I can’t think of
co-head coach. This man had not done anything all season with us. He had no
idea what we did. What we ranhat kind of defense we played, out of bounds
plays, but here this man was put on our bench at the state tournament. It was
very disruptive to the team. Very disruptive. And we got down there and we
played Palatine fermd, and we were up by thirteen hethalf. We were still up
by close to thirteen migvay through the third quartertheseare short
guarters—andwe lost by one point. We had a lasticond shot that was
disallowed. We had our center, thought she had five fouls, walked off the floor
andsa t he rest of the game and our coach ¢
Shewas sixtwo, twenty points a game average, walking off the floor some time
in the |l ate third, early fourth quarter.
the winner thayear was Sterling High Scho@ue Strong coached that team
and she is one of the people I interviewddthey had a good team, a very good
team. But what it did, what that tournament showess a decided lack of
experience and knowledge of women coacdued officials People used that
against women and now, when you | ook aro
female coaches and you hardly see any female referees. At the start, it was all
women referees. All women coachasd it was poorly handled here vas no
support system, no training system for these people. Oh, you played GAA,
[nowlyou’ re going to coach basketball. Yo
you’'re going to coach swimming because Yy

DePue: This is getting way laead of the story but the opportunity is there. Why the
transition from women dominating all these positions, referee, coaches, etc. to
what ' s evolved now?

Bartges:Well part of it was money. You know as it became obvious that worsen
sports, girls spots at the high school level and at the collegiate level were here
to stay and schools starting putting more money inthéreareonly so many
Division | coaching jobs available in th
was coaching collegiate baskalbthere were@92Division | teams. Now there
is something like thre865. So, they have expanded the opportunities for head
coachegbut if you were a young fellow who wanted to be a coach at the college
level or at the high school level, and all thegher people had all these other
positions, where is your place to get in? How do you break into coaching? So a
lot of them broke into coaching through dirdgports because there was such a
paucityof qualified coaches that they could take their eilmee—becausehey
played and because they had experienced these-thangtake advantage of
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DePue:

Bartges:

DePue:
Bartges:

DePue:

Bartges:

DePue:

Bartges:

It . Now, why that hasn’t changed is a Vv
thirty eight years of Title IX has produced women who are skilled in the game,

who have grown up in the games, who understand and can coach the games, but

for some reason they are not coaching.

life. There is a lot of heat with that.

There is no shortage thougif exampleof successfulvomen who are
coaching?

No. Therearea | ot of t hem. And you don’t have
have to be Pat Sunith Or Tara VandeVeerThe money, particularly at the

collegiate levelhas gotten so large, the competition is just thathrfiercer

and, quite frankly, athletic directors are primarily mattéistory will show that

you tend to hire people like yourselfhat °' s t he whole thing fo
affirmative action and that’s one of the
at hiring. I't’s not that you're giving
want to have a level playing field.

But that’'s just human natur e.
Itis. It reallyis.

Ok avy, |l et’ s go back ta&nd oludenngwhatr na ment e
the feel was. First of all, where did the tournament occur?

The games were played in Horton Field House on the campus of lllinois State
University and it was April of 1977, actually April first. It was April Fools
Day.

Whatwas the feeling in that tournament, being in the gywas the crowd
large?

It was. It was.Our coach and our athletic director made a decision that we

were not going down the night before and staying, which, in my opinion, was a
mistake. Sowe got up the morning of April first, which I think was a Friday,

Il ' m n oWegatim a&an, maybe two varend had a serdff at the high

school. My dad was our cheerleadsr he got the crowd whipped up and he

was good at it tooThat was anothething that the high school wanteddo.
“@you’re going to the state tournament .
varsity cheerleaders to go with you and cheerd our team saidNo. Mr.

Bartges has cheered for us since we were freshmen or sopkoamtevhy he
should be kicked out because we’'re going
to get the advantage of thatRlo. And they were hot about it. thmm, t hat ' s
the kind of stuff you get at the high school level. | mean, what were they

thinking? So, we got in a van. We had a little send off. Police out of town.

You know, all things that we had nevemniildest dreams thought we would
experienceand[we] get on the road, gimterstate 55outh to Bloomington. |

can remember riding in thean. We traveled a lot growing upVe used to go a
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month at a time and fish and go to places and see historical stuff. But, we never
did Illinois, so going south otb5really showed me a different broad expanse in
'l 1 inois that Illremknabdrthere wae xhuge graieaevasod .
there just north of Bloomington and | had never seen one quite that big
Remnants of it are still there. Theaeethe big cemensilos Just that kind of

stuff that | rememberWe went into Horton and we wedbwn into some

locker rooms. | remember that. And the locker rooms were not very big. Kind
of dark and dingyAnother one of the genius things that our athletic director
decided to de-the spirit was okay but he bought us all new shoes. And then

they expected us to wear these shoes. We
they were big, heavy Adidas shoes. You
Well, “We bought you these shoes from the booster club and we expect you to

wear ther. Well, my feet wee kiling me you know butl * d haveéa t o | ook
picture to see if I had warthem or not.We wore Chuck Taylors and here you

have—n o , | . Wihen gou askd about the crowd, these are the pictures of

the crowd. It was a huge crowd and we werealuseplaying in front of crowds,
but not crowds like thisY ou can see both decks, both balconi€sese are
those white Adidas shoes. Those are my high top Chuck Taylors right there.

DePue: We’' re |l ooking at her phot ctureslntsa m. We ' | |
everybody else can see them as well.

Bartges:This is when we thought we had won on the-tastond basket. This is when
we found out they didn’t allow it.

DePue: Wow.
Bartges:Big difference from this to that.

DePue: Butthe energymusthaltee en i n t he building |ike you
before?

Bartges:Uh-hmm, not in the same sense. Just because Horton Field Hafugeo u * v e
ever been thereis a big expanse of a buildingrhey had bleachers at the ends
and that was something that wadatiént and big black curtairssmaybered
there—but big curtains that hung dowand you have two balconies. We
always had good attendance but you look at this. Tdrethousands of people
here. When you go to shoot at a basket like that,differert. That was a very
different feel. The basket just hanging out of the sky somewhere and then

there’'s people behind it. We had never
DePue:l s this you here blowing a bubble while
Bartges:Yeah.l t ol d you | wasn’t a shootsuer. Not a

sectionaimatch. But you can see here, too, you know, it goes back, we had
pretty good.. &lr e’ s cmgerinfpa d
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DePue:

Bartges:

DePue:

Bartges:

DePue:

Bartges:

Okay. We can get a lot of these pictures in. That wouldreatg One of the
reasons | wanted to have you explain this is because, | think, somewhere in the
nearfuture beyond this date, you had an opportunity to go to lowa as well. Am

| getting ahead of the story?

No, no. It was really interesting, aeily, and it was one of the things that sort

of turned thdight bulb on for me. Even though | was aware of Title IX, and as

you can see, | had an opportunity to compete, and | was happy with that

opportunity | was grateful for the opportunityAfter we played in the state

tournament in 1977, our coach lethe and her husband moved to Washington

and we had anew cogdewashe t hird coach we’d had in
first coach’ solama manwa s hleir sdan® of the pe
interviewed. She was really an amazing coach. Very patient, very

fundamentally sound and she understood basketball. She came from

Pennsylvania and she had played basketball. & @twuber was from lllinois

she had not grown up playing basketball and stethafirst person to tell you

t hat . She didn’t have any airs or illus
was hired as a physical education teacher. She was relatively young, right out

of college and this was part of her assignment as a PE teaxheach this

team. Well, she fell into this team and I think in her interview she said that.

S he’ s*OHmylGed, Butour senior year we had a guy named Dennis

Karnsted. He was a science teacher in the high school and he had played ball, |

think at Central College indfla, lowa. | know he ran cross country therele

had an understanding of what dirdports could be and so in the spring,

probably in March of 1978ny senior yearhe took us to the low@irls High

SchoolAs s 0 c i at toormament irsVietarang Auditorium.

In Des Moines?

In Des Moines.We stayed in Central, in Pella, at his college. You know, he

made arrangements and we stayed there and we went to Veterans Auditorium

which, when | first saw i and | hadbeen through Des Moines, | mean we

traveled through t her elthought, Wow, dlioaked” t know
l i ke an ar k. I't was | i ke Noah’s, Ar k. I

so | have a vivid imaginationl had kindof picturad a boat. But for me it was

sort of a metaphor for sport, you knplere we were going to this place to see

this championship that’'s been going on f

probably at |l east forty years ol d, maybe

The hte1920s as | recall from one of your other interviews you did.

Yeah, so fifty years they had been doing this. | said | was happy to have the

opportunity to play. But what irked me was that we could not earn varsity

letters. Theywould notgie us a varsity letter. We d i
We di dn’ t egtrénsic notivationahft a tomgetitive person likes

hardware, which would go with the military thing.
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DePue: Ribbons.

Bartges:Ribbons, exactly. It used to irritate meathat my brother who played all four
years in football and tenni s, but he was
waive out of PE because male athletes di
We had to go to PE every day. We had physical eéductve days a week and
that irritated me because it was an affront to my sense of justice. You know,
here’ s my brother who is a bench war mer
to have a study hall, which | had none, and | have to go to PE and swing d
the middle of basketball season. | would say to my Moffy is this so?
Andshesaid;l can’t answer that question. Wh e
say it was because you were’la mgilrilke,ut I
| ° m n o tAndd would @ut. And my Mom would call the office and say,
“What do | say to her? You tell her, you explain it to'hé&o she was
supportive in that way. Or | would call in for myself. | mean | was kind of a
brat

When we got to Veterajduditorium] —and this comes back to what we
wer en’ t al +auvawatds forovardityacengpetition were charms for
our charmbracelet On NationalGirls andWomen inSports Day, to this day, to
this year, on that day, every year, | wear tiraiceletas aremembrance of
where | came from. Because now, not only do girls and women earn varsity
letters but they have scholarships and they have the opportunity to play
professional ball and all this other stuff. | got little silver charmsrfigcharm
braceletmy Mot her put t o g e“Whlleyou wear this me . She’ ¢
proudly because this is the only athlet:]

But we walk into Veterans Auditorium and here are these gitlsere
were some big girls there teoy 0 u  dseediddften in lllinoislike Leuken
my teammate Debeukenshewa$’ 2” You didn’t thate a | ot ¢
But we walk in to Veteranand it was just stacked with big girls, huge basketball
players talented and they all had letter jacket$hey had medals all over the left
side of their chest. They had stripes on their arms. They had pins. | mean, you
name it, they had it. Their names on the back. It was like going to the Olympics.
It was phenomenal. The difference between what xperéence had been at the
state tournamenand it was the firstonet her e’ s a bi g di fference
first and the fiftieth- but nonetheless, it was like, Wow, | cannot believe this
couldn’t.

| listeredto JimDuncan;he was the announcereH s dead now. Bu:
announced all those tournamenthey had the hall of fame at the half time and
in between games they would do the hall of fame induction and they would turn
off all the lights in VeteransWhen | went to lowa State, | used to gowtofor
the tournament because it was such a thfile guy announcet And entering in
this year’s class, t lager’cMoaadvessaiger 198 1, i s
played for, now |’ m not going to be abl e
she played- Vinton orone of these little towns in lowashe averaged thirty five
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points a game and twenty two rebouralsd outparades Mona being escorted by
somebody.They had twenty of these people it seemed like that they were

inducting into their hall of fameYou could walk around Veterans and you would

see the pictures of them and amazing stories about these warleam back in to

the* 2.0Ad, it was like, Wow, How can that be? How can that be? But then,

you know, | knew it was becauseand | broughtt —-her e’ s a picture, t
picture from 1921. The basketball says&-S.

DePue: H-S, yeah.

Bartges:German Township High School. The woman, second from the left with the
watch on her wrist, is my grandmother. 1921.

DePue: This is lowa?

Bartges: This is Pennsylvania.

DePue: Pennsylvania.

Bartges:| knew this fromPennsylvanidecause this was part of the story.
DePue: That ' s a great picture too.

Bartgesi don’t know why my grandmot her has a wa
a watch on. Thenost famous basketball alum from German Township High
School is C. Vivan Stringer, who is the coach at Rutgers.

DePue: She spent some time at lowa.

BartgessYeah, exactl y. So | st icdnbesadiffarent n’ t get
But those kids of experiencehelped shape me and helped motivate kivhen
| was coaching and when | was doing other things, | was very cognizant of what
the experience was like. lwanted mykidhave t he experience tF
have and to have the opportunitybenefitfrom the fraternity of sport in the
same way that guys benefit from the fraternity of sport.

DePue: And that’'s what you saw when you went to

Bartges:Oh yeah. Yeah, they were light years ahead of lllinois. Every state around
lllinois was light years ahead of lllinois almost. It was phenomenal.

DePue: Two questionshefdr anching out in different direc
of basketball were you watching in lowa?

Bartges:That was one difference. We were watching@absix with arover.

DePue: You need to explain that. Because | don
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Bartges:l "' m trying to r eaveimbeéB ilf woludrden’ wa sswear
was arover. Six-onsi x was ol d school .playedt ' s what r
You had three guardguards were defensive playeikou had three forwards
and forwards were offensive playerBhe most prolific scoms—andyou can
tell I get fired up about this stuffthemost prolificscores | " ve seen wer e
lowans from whenthey played skon-six. Oh my God. Lori Buman who
played at Des Moines East, she still holds the NCAA scoring record for a
tournament from 1981. She scored fifty points in a game. That girl was an
amazing shooter. Kaiek; Kay was from Grundy Ceet, lowa. Dawn
Wumpkes was from Cedar Falls ddudson- up around Cedar Falls there,
whatever it might have beerudson Tremendous shooters and there was no
threepoint line then. At the high school level when you see these girls, they
could take twalribbles and a step and then they had to pass it or shoot the ball.

That was their choice and you would think it would be slow but the referees

were so much more engaged in that game. You know, there was one

underneath the basket and they got the balbbthe net and gave it to the girl

and the girl passed it up and the offensive players could play defense in the

sense that they could press in the front court to try and steal the ball from the

guards who were passing it up to their forwards. Buttheyu | dn’ t cr oss he
court line. They could not cross the center line.

(Bartges added this note after reading the trangcrip

The ref took the ball after a made basket and quickly passed it to the
second official standing at hatburt. That official hen passed the ball to
the waiting offensive player standiimgthe center court circle who
initiated their offense.

And you would see these gidst was funny-you would see them
running down the half court fdthete speed a
was likedaserb eam t here that they’  d get zapped.
They could tiptoe along that line and not cross over it. The balance and the skill
was amazing.The six player game evolved actually from a nine player game
earlierin the century. But that was adapted for women because the perception
was that women couldn’t run the full <cou
reproductive organsThe literature on this is &nt I mean, there’s
literature on this about frommedical doctors and medical professioralsh at ' s
usually theeuphemisnthey put for quack-that says, if you do this these
women will not be able to have children and so therefore, sport for women is
going to have a negative impact on our society. Wdihat a bunch hog wash.
And women doctors were saying the same thilg.at ' s why you saw a
thinkinthe” 2.0ls don’t have an exact date yet, b
my grandmother competing prior to 1930 and then from 1930 to 1956, ther
this twenty year period of time where it was like a desSoimething happened
-all of a sudden sport was not okay. Th
and play days and all that.
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DePue: That takes me to the other direction here. Are you saksigplaces like
Pennsylvania and other states abandoned the whole notion of having these
tournaments and having that traditiormod me baskstball for example?
lowa obviously did not.

BartgesTher e were some st at es t ttleoseindividdal | don’
states to say for sure that they abandoned them completely. You cettainly
see a gap. Il m trying to think of the s
Wisconsin, not in Minnesota, and | looked primarily at the Midwest, although
Kentucky is not a Midwestern state | realizZday be i n Ohi o, again |

really consider Ohio Midwest but | have arguments about that with people.
They played, they had a state tournameand | know Kentucky did-and then
it went away and then it canack in theé 7 @fter Title IX.

DePue: lowa was rather unique in that respect then?

Bartges:Absolutely. lowa was in front of the pack. And people, you know, some of my
uppity suburban friendswouldsaéyf ou’ r e goi ng where to
going b lowa? "N o , l > m going to |l owa State a
isn’t that an Ag school and | was |
state of lowa-i t * s af fafmarsacblinch of hicks- you know the
perception[but]th at ¢ o u ktleemfrom theltrath. fThose people were so
much more progressive and still are. So much, you know, the belief in
education and all ahe fundamental things that you see that grow families and
grow tradition and grow all of the strength of that stataiciMmore
progressive. What a horrible misnomer they had laid on them.

DePue: Why do you think lllinois was so slow to adopt this? Slower than almost all
these other states from your own explanation.

Bartges:That was one of the questions | asked thapfed interviewed and almost
universally the answer was the resistance came from male athletic directors that
did not want to share facilities. Kind of like | spakieoutearlier, you have a lot
of small schools in lllinois. | think Illinois is one dié three states that has the
most towns under five thousand. lllinois, Pennsylvania, Texas. And those
towns don’t have the facilities.

DePue: And has the second highest number of independent governing agencies.
Bartges:Why am | not surprised?
DePue: Yeah. |think Texas is the other one.

Bartges:So you don’t have infrastructure from th
interested in sport for white men and you have principals who are primarily
male, almost exclusively male, who are not interestedantsor girls because
I't’s going tolfcwtoui dticttemeitro tLioma. Ramsey
grown her GAA program from less than, | think she said twenty to over three
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DePue:

hundred in two years at Pekin High Schodbhealsowanted to implement

interscholastic sports. She wanted to implement competitive, spart order

to do that, to grow her GAA program, she needed an additional day a week in

the gym. It was wrestling season and so she askegriheipal who wasthe

athletic directorfor an extra day of time to share the gym and the guy wrote

back,“ tthas been his experience that athletics for boys has been a major

contributor to their characteAll of the boys in the Pekin High School system

needed to benefit from this character buitgactivity” Something close to

that. She writes back to himred ink—“What about the character of the

girls?” She says she puts it in an envelepghe was smart enough not to take it

down there herse# and she put it in his boxThe next day shasked for her

transcripts to be sent to lllinois State Illinois Central College and to

somewhere else, and she left Pekin. She got out of the high schools forever.

That’' s how st r ogatkindd meatalifpvad not uGEigoeotar t i t .

Pek n . I n no way was that wunique because
have to want to make a difference. You have to want to have change to sit

down and say, Okay, how can we allocate these resources? khsgathrted
circingthewagonsandsai ng, Okay, you guys, you kno!
We need to make sure we keep our stuff w
them.

terms of what 1t i
an extension beyon

Well, | "m thinkin
much about loyalty. Sorgab e t h
actual competition then.

g in
at’ s

Bartges:We | | I don’t know what your sporting ba

DePue:

from your own military background about loyalty, and loyalty is one of those

things—and! ve said this about my-lbadl | egi at e ¢
never witnessed the kind of dogmatic loyalty that you see in coaching. You

know, my philosophy is that blind loyalty wagisprudenceout at Nuremburg.

There was no longer an excuse to $awas just following directions. | was

just being loyal. 1 mean that’s an ext+mtiust exampl e,
basketball- coachesgollegiatecoaches in this countryif there was a mafia, if

such a thing existedthey could teach them aboothlty. Coaches would

teach organizations that are interested in manipulating people about loyalty,

coaches would be the people you would go to to learn those lessons. Because

you're disloyal, you are excommunicateBoom.

Ok avy, |l et osygarbaeksonal narrative again
school.

Bartges:Y e a h . Oh my God, |l ve been there | onger

DePue:

Wel | , because we’'ve been taking some ver
here thateallyare at the heart of what we wad to be talking about anyway.
So this has all/l been
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Bartges:Well, yeah, reign me in if | need reigned in.

DePue:

Bartges:

No problem. So much of your experience in high school was athletics. Did you
get tagged as the jockett if | can use that word?

Oh yeah, yeah. | was voted best athlete in my high school graduating class of

‘78. 1 was kind of oblivious to some of the things. | was definitely a jock. |

never really thought of jockett | was fortunate that | had intellectual interests

thatwe e di fferent so | wasn’t just a jock.
groups and | could move amongst those groups quite nicelyth&uwetwas

something that you heaand there was definitely not always, but depending

onwhereit was coming from- there were usually sexual connotations that went

with that.

DePue: Okay. What were your aspirations at this time? What did you see yourself
being beyond high school?

Bartges:| wanted to be avet, aveterinariag@o | | ege sports wdar en’ t r ea
because | just wh%8&ahdagainlpvassyeudgthterdd t h e m.

DePue:

had witnessed limited coverage of tl& Olympics— mostly track and field-

but primarily men. | was very much aware of Wilma Rudolph and migo

Tyusfrom the 1960 Olympiteam who were not only phenomenal athletes,

even[from] just afew clips that | saw or the pictures that | saw, but they were
probably some of the first African Amer.
digress for a second here.

My freshman year in high Bool, our coach, Coach @an, took us down
to lllinois Statelllinois State University at Normalp see the college team at
[llinois StateJ i | | Hut chi son was coaching at |11
people | interviewed | remember seeing a wam.. | come from a lily white
suburhl d o n’ t hadahyiAmidan Americans in my high school until |
was a juniorand | graduated in a class®80, s it was not a small scheelat
least that | could remember. Coachli&otook us down to IllinoisState and |
saw that they were playing basketball bu
significance of thatBut | remember seeing Charlotte Lewig was like seeing
Tyusor Rudolph in person, only Lewis was much bigger than life. | mean she
was six twosix three. She had this humongous Afro hairdo, | mean drbig
When she ran, it floppedshe was a big woman, a big strong woman. That
impressed me. | was like, Wow. You know, that it was okay to be female and
big and strong. Even as a freshmiaknow | made that mental connection.
Here’ s somebody that’'s doing this and it
mean there were a lot of other people on the floor too.

Apparent
t

y you're f egettingsoge sublinanal because vy
mess g € S a

I
hat it wasn’t okay to be

Bartges:Well, | had that message from the get from my Dad.
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DePue:

Bartges:

DePue:
Bartges:
DePue:

Bartges:

Okay.

So when it came time for me to go to college, | was thinking, Okay, | want to be
a veterinarian. | need to go and | need to concentrateyoacademics. Well, |

w a s aneophytat school and | had looked at schodidy family, like | said
traveled a lot. | had an offer to play basketball at Montana State. | had an offer
to play basketball at | want to say- Gunnison University in Glorado. And,
somewhere else. | need to find those letters. But, when | went to Montana State

and visited theml thought,My Go d , [ neveThergisaaduat e
ski slope and a trout stream. | knew myself well enoudiked to do thos
thingsasl gr ew up. So, | decided against th

bestinteresa nd Gunni son was nMycritétriafgrgengtough f or
school was that had a good vet school and it had to be somewhere far enough
away from homehat my parents could not drop in on me. Six and a half hours

was just about right. Ssshenl set foot on | owa State’s
i mmedi ately that’'s where | was going. M
Day because we di dnatthe emdaoithe da§lhibise ol and |
wher e | ” Tinergwas meger any hesitation in my mind. | never
regretted that choice. But sport wasn’t
weeks in the dorms at | owa Slt’amedoiafg er
homewor k. It s |ike, What the hel/ is t
used to going to practiceso then | went and talked to the tennis coadiad

talked to the tennis coach at | owa St ate
any scholarshipand she had said come out. Well, then | realized, then | found

out that that woman had | eft. Linda Lan

story with that, how small life is. Linda Lander left and the woman who

became the tennis coaeliher name is Christa TownseradChrista came from, |

think she came from Kansas. She went to school at Southwest Missouri and

she’ s tanmsHae héi of Fame t herSelwentttalkKto e st i | |
Christa. | had never met her before. | ehdp playing tennis at lowa State.

That’' s how that happened. Linda Lander,
conference Iin 1977, Il m pretty sure that
19777

Il " m sorry, 2007.

Okay.

|l " m |l ooking tata tskeissiwoimdrn ma sitting in an
l " m |l ooking at her"*“lkkowthattworsad.iSlde 't © Imyk e,ar t
“What do you mean you know hérPsaid,“l know her! “We | | , she’ s not

anybody | recognizé. | said,“l have to thinkabout this. She was with some

people that we knewsowhen | heard her talk | knew immediately, | recognized

the sound of her voice. Even t hough | ' m
of memory for audio sound. | saltlou coached at lowa Stédtend she looked

at me like | was a ghost. | mean that was thirty some yearsSgosaid,
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“How do you know that?| said,“Lander’ She’ s“Thake%lsad ght .
“I was an incoming freshman the year you’lefbhe said; Oh my God. So, |

meant hat whol e experience .. and that’'s ho
with womeninpo r t |, it’s a very connected group
medn sport is I|ike that or not. Il " m sur e
are just not as great.

DePue:Let ' s talk a little bit more about being

standpointbecause apparently you didn’t stay

Bartges:No. | was prevet. | was in iSheriesand wildlife biology. | had wanted to
study history andmy Dad said to me and he was okay with me going to lowa
State. My parents had one rule for college. The rule was | had to leave the state
of lllinois. My brother had gone to NorthejiNorthern lIllinois University at
DeKalb] and he had not done welHe camehome-—that was like forty five
minutes from home came homevery weekend. He never had the experience.
My folks said,“You may not go to school in the state of lllinois unless you go
to the University of Chicago or NorthwestérmAny other sbool was
unacceptabl e. They wanted me out of
in the state.

DePue: That was okay with you apparently.

Bartges:Y e a h . |l didn’t <care. I didn’t want
class, probably ninetygocent went to college or university and of that probably
sixty percent went to the U of 1. I
didn’”t | i klecoull hayehgraduatédaftet the end of my junior year
in high school. The only reasostayed was to play sports. | was bored. So, |
went to lowa State and | wasfisheries andvildlife biology and | found out |
wasn’t such Notaggoedas thesetpeodletimt were graduating
from little towns in lowa with graduating classof five- theywere better
prepared than | was coming out of a h
sure whose fault that is. | think there is probably equhkdability. | took
college prepclassesxda |l | t hat st uff Dbthdsekldsdili dn’ t
So I struggled and myDadhadsa&idou’” r e not going to sc

t he

uge

h a
hoo

history. Il > m not paying for it. What a
life inalibrary? And | > m Wehlilnk iwhga,t * s? wrong with t

Yeah, Dadwv a s Even though hisnomand hisgrandmothewere both
teacher s, | d o n’asbort kf armgance &beut thkoksewdhioy s h a d

taught . Even though his Bachelor’s Degr

sometimes | forget that. | think he was a cedifieacher in West Virginjdout

he never taughtHe j ust had t hat, he didn’t want

think. My mom very much wanted me to be a teacher. So | kind of drifted
around and eventually | ended up where | belonged and should haed start
It would have been a lot easier that way.
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DePue: You changed your major then sometime whiel were in college?

Bartges:When | was a senior.

DePue: When you were a senior?

Bartges:Yeah.

DePue: So, that would suggest it took you longer than fgears to graduate.

Bartges:Oh yeah. Yeah. | was on the seven year plan.

DePue: Ri ght out of National Lampoon’s Animal H

Bartges:Yeah, yeah, | was. | had a good time in Andsok a year off and got lowa
residency. That was one of the g@al took me five years of actual school to
get through.

DePue: Who was paying the bills all along?
Bartges:My mom.
DePue: Okay.

Bartges:Actually | had jobs. You know, | worked out at Vet Med when | took the year
off. 1 had a job.Then | also was eesident manager of an apartment complex
so | got my rent free. But i f somebody’
Oneday | came home and the sewer had backed up into the baseroalfed
mymom and s‘ibég tHoket paythay €Calthenough t o o
management compariy.

DePue: Well, not having played a lot of collegiag¢hletics | know this much. You
can’t be on a team for seven year s.

Bartges:No, no, no. | only played two years.

DePue: Two years of tennis?

Bartges:Yeah.

DePue: And that was the extent of your college experience?

Bartges:That was the extent of my college experience. | thought about trying out and
playing basketball and | actually worked out with the teams when | got done
with tennis. My physical skills | wasa better tennis player than | was a
basketball player in terms of what | could do with the sport. But intellectually, |
was a basketball person. | liked steategy thechesof it. But they had
problems with the basketball program at lowa Stateak®had a phenomenal
basketball team, but lowa State, not so much. lowa had good teams during this
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period. They went through a couple of coaches in a very short period of time
and | smoked bacthen I was just .. you know, tenni ¢
pretty tame.

DePue: And only two years of tennis too. Why not four years of tennis?

Bartges:Part of it was, | enjoyed my social life. You know, my parents were pretty strict
and when | got away from home it was lik&po, | can drink pop for breakfas

Il mean, we didn’t hawel ptolpi nlkn loudi dm’'uts eh
when | went to coll ege butlstistyingli dn’ t t ak
eligible became a hassle because | wasn’

just not worthit. When we traveled, and | think | mentioned this, hvehen |

played at lowa Statlestart to see a disparity knew the disparity existed in

high school but it was a muetilder disparity. We would literally pile seven,

six players and a coach, imhostation wagon and all of our stuff, we would

drive from Ames to Manhattan, Kansas or to Columbia, Missouri in the Big 8,

and get out of the car, play our match, get back in the car and drive back to

Ames . And when you dridwe to Still water,

DePue:1 t s a long drive.

Bartges:When we played Drake or we played lowa or we played Nebraska or Northern
lowa or even Minnesota, you get a sack lufroln food service You go
downstairs, you get a sack lunch in the morning. You go to cldake imorning
and then you get in the car and you drive to one of these pl#¥oesget out of
the car. You play your match. Some of them were triangular meets so usually
if we played Drake and lowa, we played them in West Des Moines and, kind of
meet tkere. Thenwe get back in the car and drive back to Ames and get in at
eleven o’ clock at night, deng#thendgatmg on ho
class the next morning. Go to practice in the afternoon or have another match.
It was hard and being sorched infthe car]like that and the competing, it was
just not what | envisioned. Il n the end,
offsetting the things | was missing because | was doing it.

DePue: | t  wrawarding enough for you.
Bartges:No.
DeRue: How did you deal with that competitive spirit that you had?

Bartges:Intramurals. | played intramurals during those years too, those years that | was
playing tennis and we had phenomenal intramural teams adoowfloor.
lowa State had a tremendansramural program. The woman who ran it, Linda
Martek did a phenomenal job of providing, not just sese& intramural
competition but also that was the first time that | had an opportunity to play
coed sports. So we played coed football. We played softbaltoo. For us it
was all about winning-$hirts. You got intramural champion shirts. We had a
lot of athletes on our floor. We had track people. We had basketball people.
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We had a tennis player. We had softball player. We had a tremeftatorus

Back then, the NCAA di dso'ydugédtlaaekdronr ul es ab
practice, usually you played on Sunday, and we would go out and we would just

kill people. I mean we won four years,
in the dormfor all the four years. They won four years of flag football

championships. They were really unstoppalde.that was how that

competitiveneswas fed and satiated.

DePue: Okay. This might be a good place to stop for a lunch break here.

Bartges:Okay.

DePue: We 'glol beyond that point. It s been fasci
will continue as we get on to the other aspects of your life and in to the actual
research itself. We’ ve been talking a |
all good.

BartgessYeah, it i s. lt’s all sort of connected

DePue: Yeah. Okay.

(End ofinterview #J)
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DePue: Today is Thursday, December 10, 2009. This is my second session with Ellyn
Bartges. This morning we spent a lot of time talking about growing up in
lllinois, your involvement in sports and other activities. We got to lowa State.
We took lots of drersions to kind of flesh out things, like Title IX and other
aspects of the emergence of women’s spor
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forgot to ask you that we are going to start with. You said your last year in high
school basketball you hadnaale coach and, | believe earlier in that discussion,
you had mentioned that the rule was that only women could coach women and
only women could ref women. So what happened?

BartgesWh at happened? What happened was the 19
tourmrament. There were certainly, and you astutely asked when you looked at
my collection originally, where are the men? Well, in the beginning portion,
men weren’'t allowed to coach women. The
isolated case here and therkene there was no female PE teacher in the school
or they were either so old that they did
were so young they had no kind of knowledge of sport. Carthage, lllinois is an
example of that, the prime example. Dick Bieryo | interviewed, was one of
the few male coaches that was coaching from the start. Also Cy Higginbothem,
over there in Carthage. They had been hugely successful. But in 1977, at the
state tournament there were so many things wrong. There wasghtot/ou

know; | don’t want to simply crack on pe
officiating was bad. The administrative part of it was somewhat unorganized,

not the part from Il linois State which t
basketball program he¢d administer the tournament, | would assume at the

behest of the | HSA. |l don’t know that f

people who were against women’s sports w
that women were incompetent to do some oféhbsgs and used it as an

excuse to then open the door to men coaching. The coach that | had as a senior

in high school was Dennis Karnstedt. He coached there for a few years after |
graduated in 78, but you st dhetreed to see
were a few male referees, not a lot of them, but some. That was the sea change

there, that tournament. There were so many complaints. The first game of the
tournament between Fenger [High School] and maybe Sterling, whoever Fenger

played in thafirst game— Washington High School from Washington, lllineis

there were missed calls and some rough play and, | think they went into

overtime and there were fouls that impacted the game. It was just a mess. In

our game, which was the second game, ttaies South versus Fremd [Palatine],

the officials disallowed a last second basket. But the trailing official said it was

good. The official underneath the basket said it was no good. So there was a tie
between the officials in their ruling. They weatthe table, to the official

scorekeeper, the timekeeper, to say, “Di
before the clock sounded zero?” The sco
ti mer said, “No, it did no tapbook,y&o we | os
see the elation, the classic ABC’'s Wide

and then on the next page, you see the agony of defeat. It really was that way

because it was like having the rug pulled out from under you. It was an

unbelievabd swing of emotion and, it turns out they could have gone to the

table and looked at a replay. It was televised on WGN. A woman named Ann
Penstone has done a |l ot of the announcin
know i f she’ s setvadhdrandshe alsgcoachedupinithei nt er vi
Chicago area at Hershey High, but she did TV for twding; thirty years. She
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remembered that tournament. They could have gone and looked at the replay.
But there was no mechanism for that. There was no ruleebfHSA that said

that you could go to the TV camera and look at a replay and there was no desire.
They went to the IHSA, the head of the IHSA; | think his name was Quinn at

the ti me. | > d have?tHe Isaok, I|“'Nm, naltonesxa
the replay. We can’'t do that .’ But it
way one team was going to be disappointed but it ended up, ironically, that the

person, the timekeeper at the table who

graduate, an alumsyof the school we were playing. Now, you know, a little
bit of conflict of interest there, | would say. But at eighteen, what do | know, or
seventeen, what do | know about conflict of interest. But it was just, it was

ugly. Iltwasveryugly. And,h t eams didn’t | eave the f1I
leave the stands. They had a hard time getting things moving forward to get the
third game in.

DePue: Was there any doubt in your mind who had won the game?

Bartges:None. None. As a tennis player, whem are playing, you have to call your
own court. Because what high school or what college has the funds to pay
people to come and do | ines? I don’
be wrong, I don’t know. Bwastodem e of h
| abeled or to have the reputation of b
didn’t have anything to do with sexual
on your line calls. If you got the reputation of being a hooker as a player,
cheaing on your line calls, that was just devastating. So, as much as | wanted
t o wi n | -atall-costs person. wAndl saw it. The player who shot the
ball was Karen Kvackay. She was on a breakawayaylt was clear. There
was no other people@und. She went up, right off her hand. And it was
clearly off, already on to the glass when the buzzer sounded, when the clock
went to zero.

t h
t

[
Y

DePue: Ok ay . Now |l et’s jump ahead a few years
school career, but the enflymur college career. You already said it took you a
while. You were now majoring in history. | assume you got an undergraduate
degree in history?

Bartges:Yes. | have a Bachelor of Arts in history from lowa State University.
DePue: With the intentiorof doing what with that?
Bartges:Gr ad school . l sn”t that what every hist

DePue:l't took you seven years to get there, bu
school.

2 Later: It was Harry Fitzhugh.
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Bartges:Going to grad school. | had an offer to stay at lowa State ang istedlectual
history with their intellectual historian there. | love theory and | love intellectual
history, but | realized that if | stayed at lowa Statnd | loved lowa State, |
still bleed cardinal and gold| realized if | stayed there that thewse work
would be the same only with a different
know the difference between undergraduate and graduate work was just that you
would have more of it, but it would be the same stuff. That made no sense to
me.

So,I looked at some universities. Of course, my Dad wanted me to go to
West Virginia University where he was a football player. But | grew up going
back east with my folks and Morgantown is not exactly a pretty place. My Dad
used to tell the joke that whéne was an undergrad, you could tell the
difference between freshman and senior women by the size of their calves.
Because, of course, women always wore skirts then. The freshmen had flat,
flabby calves and the senior women had really well sculpte@salvwas like,

Do | need to hear that? From walking up the hills, the campus is so hilly.

(laugh)
DePue:l " m gl ad you fleshed that out a I|ittle b
Bartges:l " m t hinking my Dad wasn’'t paying attent

talked to tlem at West Virginia but | also went to Penn State and | talked to the
history department, and Penn State just impressed me much more than West

Virginia. I had family at Penn State.
and | was comfortable there. Qiurse there was also a ski slope and a trout
stream.

DePue: College Station is the town, right?
Bartges:State College.

DePue: State College is the town, okay.
Bartges:College Station is Texas A&M.
DePue: Ok a vy, Il m sorry.

BartgessThat ' s alright.
DePue: What was the community like there? A good fit as well then?

Bartges: The community was different. It was an adjustment for me coming from the
Midwest, even though | had grown up spending chunks of time in Pennsylvania

and had a lot of relatives there.&v¢ very much | i ke an alien
wher e? And, of course, everybody al ways
went to school in |l owa but, I me a n, Il > m

citizenship according to mywd,owsao f.u.iletnds
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was hard for me at first just because [it was a] different speed of life than | was

used to. You know, when | left the suburban Chicago area | never went back.

A very cliqgqguey town, State Coll age 1is.

t own. It wasn’t a Big Ten school then a
airport was still small, like the guy who puts your bags in the plane uses the

flashlight to guide you off the runway and then back in to get tickets. State

College is a muchifferent town now.

DePue: You are going to graduate school in the history department there. What is your
area of concentration and what do you plan to do with this afterwards?

Bartges:My area of concentration was colonial and revolutionary American fgistor
which | have a great deal of personal interest in and it was an area that just
interested me. 1 liked the fellow who was my advisor. His name was John
Frantz. He was a very civil man. A very well educated and a decent man and
he was very generous Wwihis time.

| had a research assistantship my first semester and then | had a teaching
assistantship after that. | probably at that point in my life was looking more at

| aw school after a master’s degree in hi
degre in history to pursue law but | also loved history. | was looking at
constitutional | aw; that’s why the col on

intrigued me because there you have this enlightened thought and access to

great thinkers. | already tia predilection towards intellectual history anyway

Hume [David] and Rousseau [Jedaecques] and Montesquieu and all those

people, how that fit in, and then | would take that and how that translates into
constitutional law. Obviously somewherelgotoft r ack wi t h t hat bu

DePue:Wel I, this is the first time |’ ve heard
lawyer as well.
Bartges:Y e a h, it’s not anything | pur sued.

DePue: Why were you at least interested in it though? What was it about being a
lawyer that appealed to you?

Bartges:Probably because | could argue things.
DePue: As you could as a college professor.

Bartges:Y e s, but | wasn’t .. | never wanted to be
to you before, | come from a long, long liakteachers on both sides of my
family; | never wanted to teach something that I loved to a bunch of people who
could have given a rat’'s ass about it.
got to graduate school that | realized that, Oh, therpewple out there in this
sea of faces that actually do care about
got my teaching assistantship and | started teaching Pennsylvania history as a
graduate student. Then I could kind of see the possibility of ntagohing at
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the college level, but for me, | still missed sport. While | had intramurals at

|l owa State, when | went to Penn State |
take me long.. |l started in January of * 8
could possibly go to and it was great.

DePue: As a spectator?

Bartges:As a spectator. Because as a graduate student, | got my football tickets free.
What a deal! Il > m a huge college footbal

DePue: And Penn State football no less.

Bartges:Penn Sta e . We won a national championship i
about that, although it was kind of boring because they rarely passed the
football. It s |Iike one, two, three up t

first down t heball awas mueh akl lowekoiwatch t h

kickers—and | do love to watch kickersnobody can compare to Reggie Roby,

the lowa kicker, so he is the model for me as a kicker. But | digress. You also

had a pass that got you in to all the other athletic cordests | coul d go.. An
they didn’t charge to go see | acrosse an
those sports. | had played field hockey in physical education but, you know,

only because they required me to. You heard what | had to say about PE, but to

go and watch these different things that were more East Coast things, although

in lowa and Il linois they used to play f

at the college level except at Luther College. They had a strong field hockey

team. lowa had eery successful field hockey team. That just kind of got my

i nterest going. I't was the first time |

We didn’t have it at |l owa State. So, th
basketball program. When | wetat watch Lady Lion basketball, they had a

phenomenal team. They had a tremendous point guard in Susie McConnell who

went on to be an Ol ympi an. She’ s a col |
fabulous point guard. The kind of point guard that anybody wéwgspihe

g ame, if you watch the game analytically
amazing passer. And underedited because of who she played for and where

she was. So after watching them that ba
reallyneedtoge back into sport and this was my

in colonial and revolutionary history and sport is really my interest and this a

consistent theme for me until | make a cut here when | get to Western. | made a
decision to make a change whiwehs this project. But, | went in. | made an

appointment to see Rene Portland, who was the coach at Penn State and to talk

to her about the possibility of coaching. | went in to see her and talk to her

about the possibil it ybaskdtbalk &He talkad toene i ng wi
for a while and we talked about some different things, just kind of got a feel for

what my background was, where | was as in school and stuff. She finally said,
“Well , you know, not very mamyiereqpeopl e wo
and ask me this. So |’d be happy to | et
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ar .’ So we started in August of

next ye
87 school year.

‘86,
DePue: Volunteering doing what?

Bartges:A lot of what | didhad to do with scouting. Initially | would assist one of the
other assistant coaches with scouting reports, but then when it became clear that
|l did understand what | was doing, | wou
Phil adel phi a a rddve wpdotNewhYor8to watch Bte’ s or
Bonaventure, some of the schools that were in the Atlantic Ten at that time. Go
to Rutgers, and | did all that on my own. They would reimburse me for gas but,
it was something that | enjoyed doing. | went to practieyeday and worked
with post players. Il wasn’t a primary b
like that and just kind of learn. And that was my entrance back into the
coaching world.

DePue: Were you a research assistant or a teaching assastidng time?
Bartges:| was a teaching assistant.

DePue: And are you still thinking, “Okay, this
or are you starting to now think maybe sports is my future?

Bartges:l don’t know t hat | futardperse but myttiheat sport s
commitment was definitely more towards the sport. | mean, once | got in with
t hat group, 1t was I|ike, whew, Il > m gone.

DePue: But that’'s not paying any bills at al/l

Bartges:No, no. | did my work that | needed to. illslid my classes, did grading, did
all that stuff and 1 still participated as an active member within the history
department, as a graduate student should. | went to seminars, colloquiums and
all that stuff. | enjoyed it. | had the opportunity to le&lom some really
excellent scholars including, as | told you, Gary Gallagher who was at Penn
State and | had him for military history
Hi story Channel all the time talking abo
teacherHe’ s got an endowed professorship at
not too long after I did. But he took us to Antietam and we walked the field in
the way that the battle was fought. You
that kind of showed me aftérent way of teaching history and experiencing
history. So that was good. But my heart was with basketball.

DePue: Did you finish your Masters program?

Bartges:N o , | did not. I worked with Lady Li
Memorial Daywe k end of * 87, I got a phone ¢
needed to come home. | had talked to my Mom earlier in the week and |
actually had gotten some letters too. In retrospect, | should have seen

on
al |
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something. The letters | got from her after Eastend | think Easter was late

thatyea~l st arted to see there were changes
onit. But, | got a call from my brother saying | need to come home, that Mom

had brain tumors and that ghhé&velwasn’t goi
State College is a pretty isolated place and from State College to home was a

thirteen and a half hour drive. So, | needed to fly home. | could have driven to
Pittsburgh and gotten out but, he called
quite exactly sure. | remember | went in to the basketball office and | told Rene

| needed to go home. Because we were doinggeaston kind of stuff and so |

don’t know if somebody hel ped me get a f
got home and | gdb the hospital. My Mom was at Loyola; she had had cancer
before, but it had been a few years and
that Friday at school. This was the Friday before Memorial Day. By Sunday, |

think, it was so bad she finally cadl my brother and said she needed to go see a

doctor. The doctor took one look in her eyes and took her immediately over to

the hospital to the emergency room and then they took her to a different hospital

where the oncologists were. She had a brain tuhai had metastasized from

the size of what they figured to probably be about the size of a pealmmad

the size of a softball on the left side of her brain. And it was bleeding out. She

said she refused to go into surgery until | got therelahdm | i ke, “ Wel | , N
you need to go into surgery, go into sur

My Mom and | had a very pragmatic relationship but also one that had
evolved by this point1 me an, hel |, Il m twenty sSsi X VYe
years old- into much more of a fridship. You know, when | was little, |
thought she was just wicked mean to me because | had a leash on me that |
thought was way too short. | probably deserved that. | actually did have a
| eash. I had one of thosenthetbackand t hat vy
you have a leash on it. (laughter). So, yeah, Mom said she would get some
licks about that. But she said | was dangerous to myself and any responsible
parent would do the same thing.

But, | did make it there before she went in to suy@erd she was saying

goodbye to me andbyem |ilkesai“dGoodYou’re no
and the surgeons -fairfet ys acyhianngc,e “tWeatl ,s hfei’'fltl
surgery.” And | said, “You’'re not dying
that ?7” Il said, “1 just know. I just kno
and she was alive and she was okay. They said she would never walk. They

said she wouldn’t talk. But none of tha

ended up being able to wadkd to talk but she could never drive again and she
had to retire from teaching.

So that was May of *87. | stayed home
Before | had |l eft school that spring of
little town called TyrongPennsylvania which is about forty minutes south of
State College. You go over the mountain and go down the valley a ways and
there was Tyrone. Mom wanted me to graduate. She wanted me to finish my
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degree. We pretty much had an agreement that | vgmulthck to State

College. | would try to get as much done on my degree and, hopefully, finish it
and if the time came that she needed me to come home, she would let me know
that. | took a lot of flack for that. You know, everybody in the family sayling,

can’'t believe you’' re going back to schoo
can't believe you' re doing that and coac
Mom’ s sisters are not athletic at all ei

that decision. Bu t hey had no knowledge of what m
conversation or agreement had been.

DePue: When we talked in the priaterview session, you talk about three promises.
Are those the three promises?

Bartges:The three promises were: before my Mom dié@, said she had some regrets

but she also wanted me to finish my Mast
t he church. Those were her three bigge
those things. She wanted me to promise her that | would do those thiods$
her, |l said, “IlI can’t promise you
that you joined because intellect
Presbyterianism is wrong, but | di
know, when most kids in a Presbyterian church join, at age thirteen or so.
Because | said, “Well, why would I join
religion that | want to practice?” Then
said | believe amhthat goes against my grain.

(7]

DePue: Had you been baptized as an infant?
Bartges:Oh yeah.
DePue: Okay.
Then does that make me wrong that | committed to this dthern g ? I d

want to change my mind | ike that.
argument from a thirteen year old.

Bartges:So | said, “What if | want to be a Catho
0
I

DePue: But when you left your Mom to return to school, what was the conversation
again? That you went back to school and what else?

Bartges:Went back to school and finish my degree, not just go back to school, but finish
my degree. Quit smoking. Then the third one was she wanted to know that |
would join the church. I said, “I wildl
finshmydegr e e, but | cannot tell you that I

DePue: But coaching was never part of that specific discussion?
Bartges:Not of the promise. Those promises were when she was close to dying. But the

coaching thing was atildat “sSwomrearc koft of &.ho®
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because | know that’s what you want to d
get into it, and | don’t want you to mis
babysitting me when | don’ edyoudeatthisi t . Th
Isn”t it."”

DePue: Ok ay . Now here’s the question that |’ ve

describing this evolutionary process bet
clear message from you at least, in the conversation, thatingad think

that’ s what | want to do. So, where was
been something you guys had talked about?

Bartges:The year that | worked with Lady Lion basketball, it was evident to me that this
was my classroom. You know, | am fact, a teacher and | just have a different
kind of classroom.

DePue: Okay. From that point on then, you had different goals in mind in your life.
Would that be fair to say?

Bartges:Yeah, it was. My goal was, | wanted to coach at the college Iaved year |
spent coaching at the high school level in Tyrone was eye opening. There is a
big difference between developing talent and refining talent and people who
aren’t involved in sport or the arts may
thereis a huge difference. Some people are meant to teach or to coach at the
junior high level or at the high school level or at the elementary level or at the
collegiate level. For me, | was a much better intellectual and analytical person
at the collegiatdevel.

DePue: The refining of talent?
Bartges: The refining of talent.
DePue: So, is developing talent what happens in junior high and high school?

Bartges:Primarily. Although | did that later in my coaching career and | think | did it
pretty well. Thatwvas as a more mature adult. At that point in my life, it was

l i ke, “Oh, what am | going to do with a

the silliness and all that. To me, sport is a serious thing, you know. People say,

and this is true-this is a onflict for me aswekpeopl e woul d say, “V
athletics or sports should be fun.” We |

made it fun. When | stopped playing tennis in college, | never picked up a
tennis racket again.

DePue: Okay. A nice pausthere to kind of reflect on that. Because the competition
wasn’'t there anymore.

Bartges:Y e a h . | didn’t play tennis for fun.
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DePue:

Bartges:

DePue:

Bartges:

DePue:

Bartges:

DePue:

You go back to college with this goal of finishing graduate school but you
didn’t finish graduate school

No,Idi dn’ t . The basketball season from Nc
took a big chunk of my time. | completed my comps. | had course work and |

was pretty much done with my course work, but | ended up taking a bunch of

incompletes because | was stilmmuting, in essence, back and forth to

Hinsdale even though | wasn’t staying th
thousand miles on my car in ten months. | was going to school and was

coaching. The only reason | know that is because | had aarew had

anot her car and, | don’t know, something
with it. When Mom became sick, | had a weekend when | needed to get home

and | had car problems and my Mom said, you know, this is ridiculous. If

you' r e ¢ aithisgretthof roadeduring these odd hours that | would

drive, | had to leave in the middle of the night, practically, because | had work.

If | left on Friday after school, or aft
get home about eight or ninetnh e mor ni ng. Mom didn’t wa
in an unreliable car. So | got a new car. | got a Ford SUV, a light blue and

white Bronco Il that my dog would fit in

put on that car because when she died | traded that.ca
Did you spend the last couple of months with your Mom then at home?

| did. Our agreement was that when she needed me, she would call me and |
would go—whatever it was | would drop it and leavand | think she waited
for the end bbasketball season in February. When basketball was over, she

sai d *“I need you to come home now."” And
could have withdrawn from my classes and stuff. You know, there is an avenue

for that. | had no conceptofthatlhd of st uff and | don’t Kk
ever advised me to do that. Maybe it di

Well, it sounds like you had every intention of returning back to Penn State
when, unfortunately, your Mom passed away.

ldd. My Mom died June 22 of 88, so from t|
of June | was home. | went back to Pennsylvania a couple times: once for a

family wedding and then within a week, a family funeral which was rather

ironic really. hetrtswwsfmywbadygselwr op wit
Mom, who died of cancer. She got sick t
April. And so | had gone back for her funeral and then Mom died in June. But,

| had every intention of going back and finishing. Bueaiom died | had the

estate to deal with and all of the medical bills. She had more than a million

doll ars worth of medical bills and some
because there was a lot of double billing and a lot of shenanigans as faasas | w
concerned. And, so, I had the house to

Were you the executor of the estate?
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Bartges:Yes.

DePue: Where was your Dad in this time period?

BartgesThey wer e divorced by then. The divorce
divorce ppers when she died. [ think the final thing came through just a month
before she died. And they had been sepa

DePue: After you got done settling the estate and taking care of all the property and
those things, then what happerext?

Bartges:Rene Portland, the coach at Penn State, connected me with a new coach at the
University of North Carolina at Charlotte. He was a new head coach there. He
started like July first. Rene connected me with this fellow named Ed Baldwin
whowas a.. I’ 1l refer to him as the teufel

DePue: Teufel?

BartgessDer teuf el . That’' s German for the devil
Carolina State for Kay Yow, and Rene and
got my foot in the door into a differefevel of college coaching in a different
part of the country. Il had never 1|lived

people in North Carolina, but it was my chance to get back in to college

coaching. The year at Tyrone showed me quite clearly thatvdganot where |

needed to be. So | managed the estate from Charlotte and then Concord, which

is just a little bit north of Charlotte. That first year | was a volunteer assistant at

UNC Charlotte, unpaid. | could affordtodothmo ney wasen’ t an i ss

DePue:Because of your Mother’'s estate?
Bartges:Y e a h . I mean.. there was a fair inherita
DePue: Okay.

Bartges:So | decided to do that. | bought a house eventually, not that year. |
volunteered for that year. | did ghe-floor coaching] did scouting, | did
recruiting; | did academic advising and counseling. Anything that most any
college coach would do.

DePue: You’ ve already suggested that there is g
yourself and the coach. But did you enjoy thieeo aspects of what you were
doing?

Bartges:Oh yeah, yeah, | did.

DePue: And feel like that was where you needed to be?
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Bartges:It was. North Carolina was not where | felt | needed to be because A, it was too

hot . Il " m a wi nt er ovpdemansirates. Butsit wasyan i mmi n e n

up-andcoming program. | had a lot of autonomy to do what | wanted to do and
initially the experience was nothing
was our worst year. | think we were right at five hundred. ti®next four

years we won twenty games a season. We were very successful. That was a
period of time of huge growth in the

basketballand Iwenttoapdrti me assi st ant -Wi8t9h b aMakset b e

that right>-‘ 8 7, ~y@dh, as 8part time assistant, paid. | probably made

about Si X thousaprd9ddoll lvmas .an Tahsesni sthnardt8 9

basketball coach and then | was seleetedd | use that term loosely, especially

given my current professionas t he head women’s softbal

Charlotte. So I had a fifty percent appointment as a softball coach and fifty
percent as assistant basketball coach. | still did all the same things with
basketball but in the spring, when we were done plalyasketball, my

attention was focused on softball. In some ways, you know, those softball kids
probably got the short shrift because basketball was my first love.

DePue: We | | I was going to say | hadn’t heard

Did you have much experience in playing softball?
Bartges:| had played softball.
DePue: Other than shagging the balls in the backyard with your Dad?

Bartges:| had played softball. | had played in high school and | had played AAU
softball, or ASA softballdr years. But, that was an arrangement that the
administration at UNC Charlotte made so that | could stay on as the basketball
coach. I mean, |l couldn’t continue t
while away my entire inheritance.

DePue: What des it mean to be a fifty percent assistant coach?
Bartges:It means you work a hundred percent and you get paid for half of it.

DePue: What a deal.

Bartgess-Yeah, yeah, it’s truly a good deal
Charlotte. | had alwaylived in the world of basketball. The world of
basketball is sort of Iike Hinsdal e:
wealth and they have opportunity and they have access and they have
connections. Softballisl don’t want ditonallitleecutespy o f

sayingssbut it’s an ugly duckling. And it
places at this point in time, was not
scholarships. The state of North Carolina played slow pitch sodtbtde high

school l evel . I had 2.2 scholarships

catchers from within the state because

handicap, to say the least.
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DePue:
Bartges:

DePue:

Bartges:

DePue:

Bartges:

This i1 s a per son atltowatehfthose gamesdhouglhut i1t ' s a
Oh yeah, yeah.

|l would think anothtebemacti sni sofibdallyouig
you find that aspect dang rewarding, finally being in charge really?

Yes and no. Is it fun to be in clggrand not have a checkbook? Do you want

to be the head of your household and not
so. It was frustrating. | learned through an evolutionary process, and | probably
couldn’”t have told vy paopletatenad mearittobehat t i me
head coaches and | would say that of mys
| " ve been a head coach in basketball and
fun at it that | do as anytoafessiorsoneant coac
thing as an assistant coach for a dedica
coach. So, for me, that was not the bes
evaluation.

Okay. You had alluded a little bit ago about the relationshiwdst yourself
and the head coach in basketball. Is that something you can flesh out a little bit
for us?

Yeah. When | took the softball job, | started to look at budgets, because before

Il didn’t have anything tsoudddemnwilt’hmt he bu
responsible for a budget. When | started looking at the budget, | started looking

at the haves and the hamets and, again, | had never really thought about those

t hings. |l realized, Okay, my kids don’t
and | do have that sort of instinct to be an advocate for my team and, in my
opinion, i f you don’t advocate for your

So, | look at the largess and the waste in basketball and | compare it to my 2.2
scholarships and ¢hpaltry little recruitment budget that |1 had and the paltry

l ittle travel budget that | had and | ' m
|l ooking at salaries and by |l ate 92 into
Title 1X.

Without getting into long eXpnations, Title IX is basically assessed in
three areas. There are three major prongs of Title IX and then there are about
ten sub areas. Those sub areas have to do with access to coaching, access to a
trainer, media, travel, scholarships, etc. Thasdxkof things that are every day
matter of life in intercollegiate athletics in the NCAA. When | started looking
at those things and then looking at salary, through a very arduous and
unnecessarily slow processou know, this stuff is supposed to be paibl
information—I finally track down the salaries of the athletic department and |
was fl abbergasted, just stunned. It was
really got me because of the women’s spo
at UNC Charlotte dring this period of time; four of the head coaches of
women’'s sports were men and three of the
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wo men. of , I's that right? l' s it six or
average salary for men coaching women waty filnousand dollars. The

average salary of .. it must have been siXx
two women who were head coaches was twelve thousand five hundred dollars.
There was a huge disparity. Somet hing’ s
beause volleyball was coached by a woman
It in here. Il > m not quite sure how that

DePue: Bottom line, there is a huge disparity.

Bartges:Huge difference. Then, when you looka&dhe differences between the
assistant coaches, again, most of the assistant coaches were women but the
sports and how they were broken out .. and
sports, and, of course, there were no women coaching-wérch is
something * ve al way s—thevsalary diffdrenteavasdust
exponential. The budget differences were out of whack. | think at the time and
enrol |l ment, it s called proportionality,
of the three prongs | mentioned. ybur university is fiftyfour percent men,
and fortysix percent women, ostensibly, in theory, your athletic budget should
reflect that distri but i-sixpercentoflyjourw it ' s f u
student body is women and so you should get fsirtypercent of your athletic
budget, and fiftyfour percent of your student body is male and so-fdtyr
percent of it should go to the men. Tha

DePue: Well, part of this dynamic always is football.
BartgessChar | ot t efootballd n” t have

DePue: Okay, well, so 1’711l finish my thought an
Football, where it exists, always domina
and it eats up lots of dollars. But it also generates a huge amount of.mone

Bartges:See, you’'ve just parroted the company |
football. My dad played football. | love football. | love to watch it. | know
football. But there are probably less than twelve programs in the country that

makemoney t hat are not through “hocus poc.!
making money so that they make more than they spend. So that they are in the

black. The rest ofthese programs | aces | i ke Western, [ 1
and pretty sure lowathey don’t make money. They say

because they charge admission and they say that that is the standard. And this
was told to me. This was told to me by an athletic director at UNC Charlotte
that softball was not a revenue producing sportlbbec2a you didn’t take

money. |l said, “Well, nobody’ s asked me
could charge at the gate.” Well, "No vyo
administrative decision.” So, that’'s a

DePue: Catch 22 there?
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Bartges:Yeah, that'’'s a <c¢ch
t

DePue:

oice that an administra
How do you know hat | ' m not going to pr
part of the costs of my program? Football, as you noted, is a huge team. |

mean, some schoelss don’ t know —tbit soméNsChadds have ani t s
hundred people on their team. It costs more than a thousand dollars a player to

outfit a football player pads, mouth pieces, shoes, cupghatever it is you

need. Youneeditall Itcostsathoush dol | ar s . So, what s
a hundred? That much money on uniforms. Then you see these schools that

say, “Whew, we’'re having history day."”
historian, somebody goes out and buys new uniforms for one-gash® day.

You know, how wasteful i's that? Foot bal
people want to treat it so they want to put football aside over here and then say,
“These are the sports that are | eft. We
women’ sndpotts meflective of the univers
what ' s this over here? What’'s that hund
women can compensate for that? There is none.

Well, this is why it  srfehftohtalk beeso

environment all this time. But you said at the beginning of this, that UNC
Charlotte didn’t have football

Bartges:Correct.

DePue:

So let’'s take it back to Charlotte and t
going back tohe issue of your relationship with the coach.

Bartges:Well, when | started looking into salaries and | started talking to him because at

the time we had a decent relationship an
African American man so he understandscdmination. He understands what

it’s |like to be on the outside. He wunde
di d. |l said, “You know, Ed, when you | o
numbers.” And | had ihisisavhatthelh@ad d out f or
men’'s basketball coach makes. This is w
you make. This is what we make. Thi s i
could focus on in fact, was that the hea
thanhe did. You know, it was very narrow.
Ultimately when | pushed, | was rebuked for pushing. | think they actually

cut my budget a I|ittle bit. What they en
want money for your softball program, you need to go outandra mo ney . ”

Wel | , Il can raise money, that’s okay. W
all this other stuff. So, | ended up going out and doing some fundraising. Well,

what | didn’t know in my naiveté was t ha

within the university. | had no concept. | had never done any fundraising
before for that. You know, | just sold Girl Scout cookies and | helped my
brother sell Catherine Beich Candy for the Boy Scouts, but not this kind of
stuff. S o vy o througle all hes@ differesnectianriels. Welh |
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didn’t go through one of those channel s
Everything was there and accounted for,
again, they are starting to build a case agamest So, | go back to Ed and | say,

Look, this is wrong. This is wrong. At this point in time there was a series of

high profile Title | X cases. | said, “T
even” or not totally eqeuxals,t ble cdaouns’et tbhealti
unless you have single sex education run by the same entity. But the difference

in these things.. the rule of thumb had b
we go back to the *46, ‘54, #ewenceihat i f t
the finances, that it would be acceptablap to 6 percent. Well, UNC

Charlotte was more than 15 percent. So, this 54 is up to 69 and this 46 was

down to—I forgot what number lused3 0 s omet hi ng. And t hat"’
common.

DePue: That 30 perent of the money going to the sports programs are going to the
women?

Bartges:Yes, and 46 percent of the student body is female and 69 or 70 percent of the
money are going to male sports programs and 54 percent of the student is male.

DePue: Does that ineide scholarships?

Bartges:Y e s . That’' s one of those components, te
areas. So, proportionality is just one way to be compliant with Title IX. The
ot her is to show a history ofcauseitpansi on,
had cut swimming and diving. The third
accommodating interests of the student body. Well, there was a push on
campus to add soccer. They had a women’

been turned away. No,no,,no we are not adding a women’
happened is, | filed an OCR complainan Office of Civil Rights complaint

with the Department of Education saying what my belief was, and | signed my

name to it, which was unheard of. Most people filertlr@monymously. My

contention was that they were not compliant in Title IX and in any of the prongs

and that they were out of compliance in the sub areas as well. | had to go

through this whole process of official government stuff: filing the papers,

haung interviews. That triggered an investigation of the University.

DePue:l s this something you’'re doing in the fe
Bartges:!l t s not a federal court <case. This is
Education. etl.t’ sl tnost I|leeggaall iyn t he sense
the Office of Civil Right s. So, it’s an

government runs based on discrimination.

DePue: Okay.

3 Now this is lower, 1- 3 percentage points. EB

47



Ellyn Bartges # FM-A-L-2009-041

Bartges:l t wasn’t from the Uni welwsntdutgidethe | t wasn
University. The investigators came on campus. They interview athletes. They
interview coaches. They look at budgets. They look at the money. They talk to
sports information. They look at facilities, courts, fields, etc., dapgreh how
you file your complaint. If you file a complete complaint, they will investigate
everything you |l ay out. I f you only fil
look at. This is where the legal part of my interest fell and my understpatlin
Title IX. So, | went through, I hit all three prongs and I hit all of the sub areas.

DePue: What are the three prongs? Can you refresh our memory on that again?
BartgessThat s t he proportionality.
DePue: Okay. Go ahead.

Bartges:A history of ex@nsion for the underrepresented gender. So it could be men at
some schools. Accommodating and meeting the needs of the student
population. If there is need or a desire expressed to add teams consistently by a
segment of the population, those needs atetests are accommodated.

DePue: Such as the soccer program.

Bartges:Soccer . So as the softball coach, Il > m d
Office of Civil Rights.

DePue: You’ re handing me a docunr980242. Rretty e . Docu
thick document.

Bartges: Thirty-four pages.
DePue: This is the results of their findings.

BartgessThi s is the result of the finding of my
publ i c. |l > ve shown it to a few people o
in terms that the OCR found that UNC Charlotte was out of compliance in all
three prongs, which had never been done. No school had been found out of
compliance with all three prongs under the law, as the law progressed. Title IX
has progressed, you knoivher e have been what they cal
been addendums to it, and then, | think, six or seven of the ten sub-areas
travel, scholarships, facilities. So because of this, the Department of Education,
the Office of Civil Rights, required UNC CHatte to add sports programs and
coaches because the women were underrepresented in those areas. And
Charlotte agreed to it. They had to sign off on it.

So, at that point in time, all of a sudden my job as an assistant basketball
coach was now beingade into a fultime assistant coach: from 50 percent to
full-t i me because of that finding. So what
different than what they had done before was, they had a search. They

48



Ellyn Bartges # FM-A-L-2009-041

conducted a sear ch f oballcaaoh, mygob.iThayant wo me
did it in a really quick manner. So it was in the spring. It was softball season, |

had applied and | get a phone call in the morning, some time in the spring. |

was already at the softball diamond because we had a gameythat kdad to

lime my own field. | had to put the bases in. | had to get the scoreboard set up.

| mean, | had to do all of the managerial, turf management, everything, stuff that

went with getting a ball fiel dcoachkady pr i
wasn’'t out I|iming his field. |l get a ca
for this basketball position.” And | sa

two o’'clock.

Well, I had a game that day, or maybe it was at Noon becauset itov
lunch with Ed. So, maybe at eleven. Interview at eleven, went to lunch with
Ed, came back interviewed, something else, then | had to go to my game. |

didn’t live in Charlotte. |l i ved out si
Iwasinslbort s, my outside coaching apparel, a
a softball game.” “ Ohgetupthes and kmeétiwithe, no p
the sports information director and | meet with the athletic director. Ed and | go

tolunchandlcomeack and | meet with somebody el
very much.” “We’ || be in touch.” And |

to go back to one thing. The very first question the athletic director asked me
was, and | can see her sitting therercleaa s day ...

DePue: Her?

Bartges:Her. Yes.

DePue: Okay.
BartgesTher e is a word for women |i ke t-hat. Sh
basketball or softball?” I said, “1 don

Obviously, | coach both becaukkave to but if | say | prefer basketball, then
my softball job is in jeopardy; if | say | prefer softball, then why have | applied
for this basketball job.?7” |l said, “1 ca

DePue: And you said that?

Bartges:| said that. It was the truth. The way | viewed it, | viewed that as a kicker. My

heart was with basketball. Il wouldn’t h
didn’t want the basketball job. But sof
too. Wel,ll didn’t get the position, surprise,
said I was unprofessionally attired and
So, that was just a fix. That was retaliation for that document sitting right there.

“‘Added to transcript: | had already workeaB there for
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DePue: But,yod d descri bed Mr . Baldwin before in a
you were having lunch with him that day which sounds like you had a fairly
cordial relationship at that time.

Bartges:That was part of the interview. You know, our relationship hadrdeated

probably starting in about .. I got the s
There was a change there, as wel . Ther
know, he .. Ed’'s a very biased man, I n my

to look atsalaries and things, he started to look more closely at some of the

things that | was doing and my experience with him questioning my sexual
orientation. That was about in “92. The
Helmly, had gone to the University of Nor@arolina— Chapel Hill for her
Master’'s Degr e-el. dSohne’ th akdn obwe einf iint was p
kinesiology or what they called ittherbout t hat ' s wher e she d
Degree. She was from a little teeny, tiny town in South CaralwbChapel

Hill was probably the big city for her. When Ed took the job at UNC

Charlotte —remember he came from NC State with Kay Yow. Well Kay Yow

was also very good friends with Sylvia Hatchell who was, and still is, the

women’ s b as k @arolina. IRuUth wae agraduatae assistant at

Carolina. So Sylvia knew Ruth. Sylvia knew Kay. Kay knows Ed. So you
triangul ate that out and that’s how Ruth
Rene Portland of Penn State. It was just a differenatn gu |l at i on. That’
those things work.

So Ruth was there. She was a full time paid assistant, limited basketball
experience, but she was the first assistant and | was the fifty percent assistant.
Ruth and | were friendats... SNee dwals tvhe rnyg ss «
very southern and to her, | was just way out there. | went one time to her place.
Her folks lived down in the Tidewater area of South Carolina, not very far from
Hilton Head, beautiful place, right on the river there. Whemgotehere she

said, “Don’t tell my Daddy | work for a
your Dad not seen the media guide?” “No
was new t o me. I had never experienced
not? What difference does it make?” And
make me quit if he knew | was working fo
to be kidding me."” She said, “No, i f yo
go. " | sai"d, I“ Oeamy [Gdhd.d never experien
my | ife. It didn’t come up so | didn’t
can’'t see why it would come up. | mean,

skin, but that was just the naiget.

Ruth had a friend from graduate school at Carolina named Laura Finch
and Laura and Ruth were friends. They were in the same program at Carolina.
Different advisors and stuff but, they were in that same group of people that you
connect with in gragate school. So, | had met Laura through Ruth in 1989, and
Laura was then a Ph. D. student at the Un
psychologist, so her advisor was Dan Gould. So she had gone to lllinois to
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study with Dan. Well, after the first yeat U of I, Dan left U of | and went to

UNC-Gr eensboro as a tenured full professor
followed Dan to Greensboro, UNG. So, Laura was back in North Carolina.
Ruth and Laura were friends; that’s how
Atsomepoint in time there, Ed asked me o
Ruth and Laura are involved?” And | sai
you know, |l i ke Lesbos’ s.” | said, and |
|l said, “ No, Is ad adn ' t“ Ofhicroku rtshegt .17 doln’ t k
neither one of them has ever said anythi
reason to believe that.” And, again, th
wasn’'t on my radar. Hle was ', t “tWeildki rnygp ua

| ever found out you were gay, | would fire you on the spot. You would not
even be able to clean your office out. You would be escorted out of the building
and that would be the end ofaroygndamd coachi

he says to me, “Are you gay?” | said, *
stupid enough to tell you that after you
l i ke, “Where is this coming from, what i
DePue: We | | , |l " m just speculating but it sounds

end the conversation in the first place.

Bartges:l n retrospect, yeah, |l " m sure it was. I
l'ittle bit but h eouldwomeshundred percentaaly that,iNo,ne st vy,
Laura and Ruth weren’t involved because
that’' s my partner. We’ ve been toget her

DePue: You were involved at that time?

Bartges:Yeah, but she lived in Greensbordlived in Charlotte. We had different
professional spheres so there was no reason for Ed to ask that. He had very
little interaction with Laura other than working. She worked his camp
sometimes. But very little involvement. He was just fishing.abociated
Laura with Ruth and that’s because they
were never involved. | think he was just fishing. But this was his way of telling
me, if this were found to be true, you would be gone and your coaching career
would be over.

DePue: Did this happen before you made the OCR complaint?
BartgessYou know, what’'s the date on that? ‘95,

DePue: Apr i | ‘95,
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Bartges:They took a long time to do that. That complaint was filed probably in, well, it
was at | e ahe saidth& Before thy @CGRIcomplaint, | think. |

couldn’t swear to it.® You know, it is a
DePue: Ok a vy . |l " m going to go back a Ilittle bit
you don’t want to. You r gEentafiegdl when, rou

yourself as being gay?

Bartges:| was probably an undergrad, or maybe my senior year in high school. But that
concept was foreign to me. | had no knowledge of it. | played summer ball
with people that were older than me, and they were alpagtsy discreet about
how they talked about things. But, again, when | kind of would let the fog that |

was perennially in raise a little bit, [
anything that was real bl atanttwasand | was
probably.. I't was probably about my soph

what my feelings had been. Why | was not interested. You know, | had not
really dated anybody of the opposite gen
like anything | ruminated on, or anything that | even thought about. It just was.

DePue:Wel I , this is 94, *95. We' ' re talking h
obviously not public with that fact.

BartgessOh, no, that’'s not terelaeWesterrknowws.t y much ev
DePue: No, | mean in1994 at that time.

Bartges:Oh, no. No, no. No, because as | got more comfortable with the realization, |
knew that that would be a death knell for me in coaching. Regardless of
whether it was right or wronghe biases towards lesbians within sport was so
strong and so irrational that my career would have been over.

DePue: You recall any specific incidents? | mean you certainly laid out this one with
the coach. Anything else that stays with you?

Bartges:(pause) Irememberand t his isn’t necessdrily rela
remember my first year at UNCCharlotte. And, again, this is my lack of
experience. | was going out to lunch with the Athletic Director, who was, as
you know, a woman, artthe volleyball coach, and maybe the business manager
who was also a woman at that time. | was in the backseat; | remember sitting in
the backseat. These were people | didn’
was new. | remember the AD sort of tedraround in her seatseat belt laws
were not really the thing thenbut turning around in her seat and saying to me,

“Well, so, are you saved?” And | said,
me to have somebody ask about my religious beliefs andrsberf to ask me if
| was saved, I didn’t have any connectio

5 Added to transcript: This incident happeradter the OCR complaint. | have reviewed a titivee and it
was indeed after | filed the complaint. EB
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said, “Saved, you know, reborn, born aga
want to be rude but where | comet from pe
their religious beliefs or their affilia
anything that | care to talk about.” I
But , I don’t think I had ever had anybod

I t legal. limean, it is if you are interviewing people for jobs.
DePue: Uh-hm.

Bartges:But, it was just bizarre and it just kind of set the tone and when some of the
things that came up that, |l > ve al ways be
interaction with plagrs. | would never walk into a locker room without
knocking. Even as the same gender. | never would put myself in a position to
have anybody question my ethics or morals in regards to my team. That is a
line that cannot be crossed and you see it aNich less in the gay community
than you do maldemale. Usually when you read about a coach having
i nappropriate relations with players, it
was always extremely circumspgoouttp just v
places and party or be seen at gay bars or anything like that. That was just not
my scene. | lived my life a homebody. | would be gone from May fifth to
August eighth on the road recruiting. | might be home eight days during that
period oftime. So | was always very careful.

DePue: We | | |l et’ s get back to

BartgesAnd it was confining. I didn’t realize
was.

DePue:Let ' s get back to 19914. Il think that wa
interviewedf or t he job and weren’t selected.
now only fifty percent softball coach.

Bartges:Y e a h . 93, "94. Because we moved here
softball coach at twelve thousand five hundred dollars andabaas in
graduate school with a graduate stipend.
money.

DePue: You were living together at that time?

Bartges:| was trying to think if she had moved to Charlotte by then or not. Probably
had.

DePue: Okay. But * 94 is the year you make the move |

Bartges:Yes, and, Laura is a sports psychologist. She has a Ph.D. in kinesiology with a
specialization in sports psychology. She got a tetnaek position here at
Western and so, rather than wait for thevitable, | resigned my coaching
position. Because of this [the OCR complaint], they had to hire more assistant
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coaches. So, | had an assistant coach that | got to hire. | told Amy Sawdy that |
was | eaving and to use Hkeegachthermaey moon wel

DePue: Okay.
Bartges:She married the ticket manager and they have three kids.
DePue:Did they .. did you pursue coaching oppor

Bartges:Yeah, | did. | pursued coaching opportunities at Western a bunch. Wwase
large amount of turnover in this program here in assistant coaches. | had
applied for assistant coaching positions at Monmouth, which is D 1ll. | had
been coaching at Division | level. | had coached on a team that was thirteenth
in the country aPenn State. At Charlotte, we were third in the WNIT
[ Women’s National l nvitation Tournament ]
twenty-one seasons, successful recruiting; fifth highest GPA in the country for
my softball team. [l applied at] Quincy, Mowuth, lllinois State, Bradley.

Couldn’t even get a phone call. It s mo
People on my reference |ist were Pat Hea
University of Tennessee. Rene Portland at Penn State and Btenwdeickson

who was at, |l think she was at Virginia
call?

DePue: This is an allegation on your part and you obviously feel very strongly about it.
What do you contribute being blackballed for?

Bartges:Filing thatOCR complaint.
DePue: Would there be anything else?

Bartges:Well, certainly moving here with Laura would have indicated that there was a

relationship. But | don’t know how. Il s
that ' s one of etshet atlhki nagbso utth.at Ictoasc hcal | e
campaign where they talk about, “Well, vy
woman, you know, because she has gays on
on her team,” or “She’ s a I|hessubeitand. ” Str
mal e coaches use it as a means to negat.
an allegation on my part. That’' s docume

and find all kinds of stories about that.

DePue: Are you talking aboutintherecui t i ng war s ? When somebod
candidate?

Bartges:Y e p . They are going to sit in your |ivi
do you want your daughter playing for th

DePue: And talking to the parents probably as muclaagbody, huh?
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Bartges:Uh-h m. Yeah, it's all very hush, hush.
i nsidious but it’s endemic and it’'s one
female coaches, | think.

DePue: Ok ay . We |l | , tsddehe dogrdola biy part gf yousr tife. Because
up to this paflcouldpysomeé woerls iyeur mouth here
you had defined yourself as a coach, especially as a basketball coach but
certainly liked it enough to define yourself as a coathd that included
softball as well. Now t hat door has bee
point?

Bartges:| was angry. | was very angry.
DePue: Angry at?

Bartges:( pause) I think | was probably.. Al s o,
complaint, Ihad filed a civil case myself against the state of North Carolina and
the process of that was still going on when we moved here.

DePue: What was the allegation in the civil case?
Bartges:Title VII, Title IX, equal employment discrimination.
DePue: Basedon the salaries?

Bartges:Based on gender.

DePue: Okay.

Bartges:Which was, you know, verified by salary. That was me personally. That was a
case that was not successful. It was thrown out at the appellate level and |
couldn’t evenwhel pbrpbabayyearn. The OCR
change to UN&Charlotte that needed to be made. Teams added, coaches
added, scholarships, travel, media. You can read through it. It enumerates it. |
know | did the right thing. The kind of things that |sM@mplaining about
were now remedied through that investigation. But, | gained not at all from
that. In fact, | lost my job. That was part of the suit as well, that retaliation. |
lost my basketball job because | had filed that complaint. So, | ngag.a
Moving here was probably a good thing.
because, Laura and | were four or five years into our relationship, and she had
much more educational training than | did and a much narrower field to get a
job. Soshewas’ t going to be throwing away her
coaching trail even if | could get a job
So it would have made no sense.

DePue: Did you go looking for coaching positions in this area then?
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| did. | worked at the high school as a librarian for seven point four years and
early on, | couldn’”t even get an intervi
There | heard the lesbian thing. Well, do you want your daughter playing for
somebody like that®we | | , what do you mean somebody
know me. You don’t know my basketball p

somewhere, somehow, that came to pass. Again, people see where you work, if
they call your previous employer. Theydoitikey | v but t hey don’t
There is no retribution for that. So, | have no doubt in my mind. Again, like

you say, truly it is an allegation. I ¢
what | know.

So you ended up being a librarianhereihe col |l ege or in the
No, at the high school.

In the high school.

Yeah, and | did that and eventually after a couple of years | did get an assistant

coaching job at Roseville High School in Roseville, lllinois which is about

twenty miles from here. I was an assista
assistant varsity coach for two or three

Was it good to get back to the coaching again?

It was but it was hard because | lmkn away from high school coaching.

Like I said, there is a big difference between refining and developing talent. |

was hard on those kids. Il m taking kids
of the town. You don’ trequéandther ideapfpor t uni

competition was different than mine.
Some of them were probably in it for the fun of it.

Probably. Probably most of them were.

| was doing and then | got a job as a juriiggh coach here in Macomb. | was

the eighth grade coach for a couple of years and that was even more different
because those kids were even younger and
was actually better than junior varsity because the kids weregharelean

sl at e. They didn’'t have some of the bad
assistant at the .. eventually, people ca
was an ethical person. At least | feel like they trusted me with their children.

There wasn’t anything I had ever done to

work on assumptions and, | was the assistant high school coach, jv, and the
assistant varsity coach and |1 still coach an eighth grade team. Then | got the
head coaching job andlid that. | retired from the head coaching job at
Macomb High in 2003, | think.

Okay. Why did you retire then?
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Bartges:December twentieth of 2002, shortly after | had started working here at
Western. | started working at Western in January 6R4tut | still continued
to coach and then | also had gone back t
her e. We were coming home from a game i
towards the quad cities. It was December twentieth and they had opesed a
bypass on US Highway 67 that went around
drive through town anymor e. 't had just
sweeping curve. Well, Routel16, I think it is, which is the road that came out
of Roseville, heageld west, had always just been a straight shot. And this new

traffic pattern opened. Well, we’'re com
South and I 'm talking to my assistant co
and he was in the front driver sidepasnger seat . We' re talki
watching this car. Il > m watching the car
and I m |l ooking at the bus and | ' m just .

me. It gets closer and closer and then | realize at sometpatrthis car is not
going to stop. And the caibiones the bus. And right before the car hit the bus,

|l stood up from my seat and | sort of .. Y
t her e, | grabbed onto one of t®iste! bar s
l't’s probably a good thing that | did th
when they heard me swear, they sat up. The kids that had headphones on that

were | ying down didn’t hear me swear. T

The kids thawere laying down got thrown into the seat and the kids that were

sitting up got only the front of their legs, their shins, got hurt. Well, the bus was

going sixty five miles an hour. We were hit broadside right behind the driver

seat, and the rear axdad drive shaft were shattered. The car got wedged

underneath the bus and then the bus drug it and eventually the cab separated

from the front of the vehicle at the firewall. We went down a seventy foot

embankment, hit the berm, and then came back dpeaiied on the side of a

field. When they built this bypass, they had built the road way up. Landed on

the side of a field at about, |l don’t kn

DePue: No, well , that’s about thirty, forty deg
Bartges:Okay.

DePue: Anything higher than that you would have been rolling.

BartgessThat s what | was afraid of. We didn’t
to get the bus st oppedbrakesMyakea,s si st ant co
brakes. ” An d no, hoomd | beckhuse if hé had hit the brakes we would

have flipped. Clay Brown was the bus driver and he did an amazing job

keeping that bus upright. When we finally got stopped, the kids are screaming

and there is just chaos and litt’’ss tdeanr kt.hi r
night. One of my rules on my team was that you must wear shoes with socks

and, boy, am | glad that was one of my rules. Because kids like to wear flops,

you know, what | would call thongs, on their feet. And here we are, kids

screaning. One of my kids yells back to meShay Rosborough, | could still
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hearhe—s he says, “Bartges, Il > m going to ope
sali

And | said, “No, do not do that"”. I
sitting right now. Do not mo e . Do not move”. Il had
| said, “ls everybody conscious? (S
they have broken bones, like there is something poking through their clothes or

t hi
any

anything?” And i t,evessodyrwas conscious.vTdereyt hi ng.

was no bleeding and there were apparently no broken bones. So | said, | will
walk down the aisle, because there was stuff everywhere. | mean everything
had just been thrown all over. My bag was six seats back frormfeei and

then going down that hill. I sai d, “
Coach Scott wi | | stand outside the bus

on the high side. So to get down, without shaking that bus too much, get your
coat and that
to you, you come off two at a time and Coach Scott will help you and then | will

clean the aisle on the bus and we’ Il

Excuse my voice. This is part of that aenitl | got back. | got all the
kids off and away from the bus. And, of course, what | had counted on was cell
phones. | had to come back on the bus to get my cell phone. 1 finally found my

w
a

s it You don’t need anyth

k ee

bag. Called94-1 and | said to tihes,i h shed¢carft EX
don’t know how anybody could have I|lived

know how when you rip a pop can.
DePue: Yep.

Bartges:When the rear wheel of the bus ran over the car it got stuck and it was dragged
by the bus. Whatldin’t reali ze was the car had
and the bus ran over the front end, the engine part. | get off the bus and | call 9

s e

1-1 and they say “What is your emergency?
girls basket bal | tondghehbypass1¥e Somebodyeear hi t
stop sign. Expect fatalities in the car.

she’s |i ke, “How do you know that?”
watched it the whole way.

So help came to us very quickdyd the town of Roseville was really

(0]

S

great . I used to coach there. Of cours

sent a school bus to take the kids back to Macomb. The ambulances came and |
think we had four kids go to the hospital. | sent one of fiséstant coaches with

the kids in the ambulances but | felt | needed to stay and deal with the police. It
was a |ife changing kind of a

DePue: Well, it sounds like you had injuries of your own though.

Bartges:| did. | had two broken vertebrae, hernéatiisks in my cervical spine and then
herniated and bulging disks in my lumbar spine as well. The fractures were
thoracic fractures. I don’t remember
mean, | lifeguarded for thirteen years and you do what yed teedo when
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DePue:

Bartges:

DePue:

Bartges:

DePue:

Bartges:

things |ike that happen. It wasn’t unt.i
really realized my own condition. But it ended up, | had a spinal fusion. When

they do a cervical spinal fusion they go in from the front and they go over your

vocal cords. This is one of the reasons | had to retire, too, is that my voice

comes and goes. I can be talking and 1°
of a sudden my voice is just gone. | coached for the rest of that year and then |

coachedth@me xt year . It was too hard. Il cou
bus. How can | supervise my team if | ¢
been on the bus that day? I f had been

been effective. Sa.

Well, that gets us to the point where we kind of started here in terms of the
discussion of this project.

Uh-hm.

And it’s about this same time you alread
Master’”s program.

Yeah. As eon as | got my job at Western, like | said, January 2002, | started
back to school. I knew what | wanted to
to do.

Were you doing that for your own personal reasons or because you had
promised your mother londong ago or both?

Both really. At this point in time, | had realized that well, A. | promised to my

Mom—and my Dad continually reminded me about that, uh, he nagged me

about that, justifiably so. But it became evident to me if | was goingttbiged

at the University into an area or different areas, academic advising is really

where | tried to get hired because | had done it for years with my team. And the

kids were very successful, a very hands on kind of style with academic advising,

butlf el't it was something that was i mport a
a Master’s Degree. It wasn’t required |
t here were so many people that had Mast e
incompletes that | mentionethat | had taken in my classes, | said if | had

known | would have withdrawn. Well, tho
was screwed. My Penn State transcript looks like, you know, a victim of St.
Valentine’ s Day Mas s a crid.dtwasrustbezausget hi ng .
didn’t go back and | didn’t do the respo
classes. So | transferred some credits from Penn-Statenany as they would

permit me—because | had finished a bunch of credits. So | trandfénree

classes in history, then | started back that summer. The most | could take was

six credits a semester because | 'm stild/l
free at any state institution. So, | started here and | finished in May of 2005

withmy Master’' s Degree. But in 2004, prob
|l ooking for something and it had to do w
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don’'t know i1 f it was because of my own i
something | was looking forThe IHSA has a wonderful website with records.

DePue: When you say you were looking for something. You were looking for
something to do a Master’'s thesis on?

Bartges:No, my advisor, Virginia Boynton, who is now the Chair of the History

Departmenthers he was saying, “Well, you’'re goi
somet hing."?” We had talked about some th
directed study with her. She let me do a sport history kind of thing and |

t hought, “Now, this is very interesting

DeRue: You had lived this for the last twenty some years.

Bartges:| know, | know. But it never dawned on me to do it as an academic area. It just

didn’ t. |l don’t know why. Il don’t know
t i me. T h e r e anyorerhéerawho Wag a spat fistdrian. And, the

sport historians at Penn State, who are very famous, the ones that were there

when | was there weren’t in the history
kinesiology depart ment. ofhisflishnarheu t as and
think his name is John Smith. John Lucas is an eminent Olympic historian. |

had him for cl ass. | ended up dropping
what am | going to do with thig? It doe
coloni al revolutionary stuff?” Now, I w
that project, because of that course that | took that spring, | sent Dr. Boynton an

email and | said, “What do you think abo

andalllcoul d find had to do with boy’s high
was looking for any kind of literature, like a book, an article, anything that

wasn’'t records or statistics, that the I
comprehensive website, one of thetbeghe states that | know. And, | have

the oldest rebounding record in the state. (laugkpril of 1976.

DePue: You are a rebounding phenom.
Bartges:l was. | had thirty boards in a game.
DePue: Whoa.

Bartges:There are some really impressive betbill players that have come out of
lllinois. Butthatrecord-l t hi nk | ' m in about ninth pl
time | was about third. But their site is very interesting. When | tried to find
written [material], a book or article informationongil basket bal | i n |
there was nothing. | could find things like these things that | brought you. The
most famous of them Brom Sixon-Six to Full Court Press: A Century of lowa
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Gi r |l s06 ByankBeranb &hls Is an lowa City book too, 196%a State
University Press?

DePue: All the better, huh?

Bartges:All the better, you know, and then ther&sly Dance in lowa, a History of Six
Player Girls Basketball So, that’'s nineteen

DePue: All of this reflects just how much of a phenomerthat was in lowa.

Bartges:Y e a h . This was 2004, okay? So | fii
anything about lllinois. So then that got me to thinking, and it got me to
thinking about my own experience. It got me to thinking about the ptugilé
knew. So | went to the chair of the history department at the time and | said, Dr.
Bal samo, instead of doing a Master's
At the time, and | don’t know hrée it "’
options as capstone kind of things that you could do for your degree. One was
the thesis, and that required x amount of course work, thirty two credits of
course work and a thesis. Then there was what they called the course work
option. No thesisno project and | think you needed thirty six or thirty eight
credits of course work. Then there was this Special Project which was
somewhere between the two in course work. | think it was thirty four credit
hours and the project, but the project halé@approved by the chair. So | went
to Dr. Balsamo and | said | would like to do this project and | would like to do
an oral history project. | know a lot of these people because | was born and
raised here and | was active in high school basketballgitinetime that these
things went on. These people are getting older and | would like to do some oral
history with them. He said, “No."”
by this time |I’m not a tradit iogearal
old coed who just got -faeyBaasold.eWebr ' s
forty-f our years ol d. And, he said, No.
cares?” I think he was just trying
ridiculous. You look at these things. You look at these things that are written
about ... there’s things about | owa, t
other states and there is nothing from Illinois. What better historical project
could thereltbhes? ndtt "rsedirendant . And

history. l't’s sport history and |1 th
t

“No."” So finally | went back and |
Boynton about it and we talked aboutrsothings. Inthe end, | went back to
Dr . Bal samo and | said, “Fine. You

v~

nd

t
S

these women’s voices being unheard for
going untold, you’re wielrlsing Ytoaw ' trak enatkh a

6 Janice A. Berarkrom SixonSi x t o Full Court Press: (Wnivasiyoft ur y
lowa Press, 1993).

of

he

st

want

t

" David (Max) McElwain,The Only Dance in lowa: A Historyof x| ayer Gi r (Bsdn Basket bal l

Books, 2004).
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judgment that their stories are not worthwhile. If you can tell me that, then
fine."” He wrote me back, “Fine, do it."”

DePue:Di d part of your discussion include, we’
athletics in Illirois?

Bartgessl don’t think | couched it that way.
formulated yet.

DePue:Because in my mind that’s a very signifi

Bartges:Well, as it turns out, it was part of a verymigcant portion of the interviews;
my first presentation, in terms of using the interviews, was on Title IX, and so
was the second one. Because when | went back through and | had my list of
guestions that | asked these twesty people, there were threéferent kinds
of questions that pertained to Title 1X, so | used the information from those for
that work.

DePue: Well, now we go in to a more historical graphical kind of discussion about this
thing.

Bartges:Oh, good.

DePue: Well before that. How norch training did you have as an oral historian? What
did you know about it.

Bartges:Zer o . Zer o. None. None. I n retrospe
somet hi ng. You can always find a seam t
look at these critially and say, this was a mistake and that was a mistake.

Starting with the Gift of Deed kind of thing. | had permission. Dr. Boynton

was helpful and very supportive but she had no experience in oral history.
Where she was most helpful is she jusimetbe me. If | had questions or | had
problems or | had crises that came up, she would listen to me and try to give me

her best intellectual counsel. But she’
IX aficionado or anything else. | did searches anititernet for oral history

and got information and became pretty much-sedf u g h 't . It s apparen
of the interviews. l " m not a camera per

tapes. | opted to do video tapes as well because | felt it was imiptoriaut a
face with the sound of a voice. There is just something to that. Some of the
videos are a |ittle bit dark but

DePue: Does that mean you are disappointed that
doing today?

Bartges:No, no, no, not at all.

DePue: Okay.
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Bartges:l " m not the focus of the project. The p
helped me, unknowingly, become and be able to do what | do.

DePue:Let s t hen talk about t he focus. Wh at d

Bartges: Originally, my purpose was to illustrate how behind-asplite honestly, bass
ackwards—the IHSA was. That went back to my playing days. By the time |
had been through all these different levels of coaching and everything else, |
realized the experiendhat | had that | said | was happy and contented with,
was not what it could have been. And it
coach’s part. It was from a |l ack of com
the administration of the school.

DePue Okay. The IHSA. Does it still exist?
Bartges:Oh yeah. That ithe power in the state.

DePue: Okay. So you started off withwell, what | would consider as an historaa
bias in this process.

Bartges:Yeah, | would have to say that, just because Idwgubrienced it. So, | think in
order to not have a bias you would have to have somebody who had nothing to
do with it.

DePue: How did you reconcile yourself to that when you were in the midst of doing the
interviews themselves?

Bartges:| tried to keepmyself out of it. You know, initially when | made contact with
peopl e, Il didn’t tell where | went to hi
played in a state tournament. Il didn’t
IHSA were. Now certainly theris some little chit chat; they might say, where
are you from? and maybe at the end of an interview | would tell them. But |
didn’t want to bias them with my biases
bias is pretty strong. Mostly because of the rigidityhe IHSA. Now, | think
that that has changed some. There are certainly some people in the-B4®A
Heinrickson, would be a good examphat have tried to make the experience
as competitive and as well rounded as possible.

DePue: Whenyou firststared t hi s, it kind of suggests th
part of what you wanted to be looking at closely?

Bartges:!l t wasn’t what motivated me. I mean it
dealings in UNG Charlotte. So it was something | miad to ask about. But
my premise was that Il linois was behind

know why. Why did these people who coached and refereed and were

administrators and in the high school and also in colleges, | mean, | have

collegepep |l e as wel | . They weren’t just higl
wanted to see what the college people were doing. If lllinois was behind, what
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DePue:

Bartges:
DePue:

Bartges:

DePe:

Bartges:

did the college people do to try and accelerate the process? Because as | learned

when | was in North Calina, and you remember me talking about slow pitch
softball, if you can’t recruit kids from
expensive. So | would have thought the colleges would have been putting

pressure on the IHSA to get these things added. Thatwiateaest of mine as

well. But overall, my question that | started with was, Why was lllinois so late

adding some of these things? | certainly had ideas. | wondered about sexuality.

| wondered about access. Was it the lack of facilities, was itaasistrom the

administration of the IHSA? Were they just a bunch of good old boys and they
didn’"t care or didn’t have to |isten to
Ola Bundy—I think if you listen to the entirety of-+t+was a much more

extensive intrview—four hours—and there are a lot of questions. There is

Ola’s version of what went on and then t
of what went on. You know, perceptions.

| want to spend a lot of time about what you have discalvieréhis process.

But first, |l et s get back to the mechani
first place. You’'ve already talked abou
at. | think a next step, or one of the early steps then, is selectipgtiple you

are going to interview.

Sure.
The demographics.

Well, this is what | proposed to Dr. Boynton, | wanted to interview the eight
coaches from the first girl s’ high schoo
coach, the higlschool coach from Fremd, the high school coach from

Washington, the high school coach from Sterling, the high school coach from

Mattoon, the high school coach from Fenger, and the coaches from Joliet West

and Centralia. | wanted those eight coaches.

Wel | , Il m going violate my own ethical ¢
of a nostalgic trip for you as much as anything.

It was. It was. But, | knew that | could find those people because they had a

little higher profile. Then | wantkto talk to Jill Hutchison. Jill Hutchison was

the women’s coach at 1Illinois State and
contacted. Jill is retired now but she still lives in Bloomington and Jill is a very
influential woman ibehindtoeme e ne sbaaket b&hle’
been active in the WBCA, the Women’'s Bas
been their president twice. She has bee
at the time, but when she was at lllinois Statemember | toldiou my

freshman year coach took us down to lllinois StatdM Hutchison was the

coach then. | remembered that. Jill also recruited me out of high school. |

remember clearly getting the phone call when | was a senior. | remember what

phone | was omithe house and talking to her. When she told me what she
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want ed, I |l aughed. (laugh) Whi ch is
Il just do it. |l said, “Why do you

You know, | wasn'tt sa xsd¢awmoer . Anld waer e

going to lllinois State. | had already made up my mind. | was going to lowa

State and no amount of nothing could change my mind about that. In talking to

Jill — most people call her Hutehin talking to Hutch, tibecame evident to me

t hat it wasn’'t me t hat she want ed. Dawn

on the team, was who she was after. This girl right here.
DePue: Okay.

Bartges:Five ten, left handed, jump shot. All State. Dawn was a really pher@ame
basketball player and Jill wanted Dawn. And Jill eventually got Dawn. Dawn
and Cathy Boswell, the one | pointed out, the one from Joliet West.
Phenomenal ball players. But | said,
because | knew Jill was wealbnnected in the state and she was very generous

with her information. She was very gene

diplomat and ambassador of the game nationally. | have a great deal of respect
for her. Most of my people | identified, if not tugh her, then through
snowballing from the people that she connected me with.

DePue: In the vernacular of oral historians, she would be considered the gatekeeper.

Bartges:Yeah, yeah. In more ways than one. | knew from my own collegiate coaching,
andl also, when | coachedand this is another segue for me to talk to-Jilie

year we played in the WNIT when | was

i f that was *92o0r * 93. It doesn’t matte
also at the WNIT.So | had sort of, in passing, said hi. Kind of reintroduced

mysel f. It had been a long time to °
really helped me and she’ s stildl hel ping
|l nteresti ng womybsah . She’s an A

DePue: There you go.

Bartges:So she came here and really built a program. Lori Ramsey, who is one of the
other people | talked about, was one of the first people that Jill pointed me to.
Marian Kneer who was and many of them areaffiliated with lllinois State
and that was also a concern of mine, that there was a skewed balance. But,
quite frankly, the names that | made contact with on my own and people that |

knew, it woul dn’ t have mattered if t her e

was a skew for a reason. They were way ahead of the curve. Much more ahead
of the curve than lllinois [University of lllinois]. Much more ahead of the curve
than Western [Western lllinois University]. Southern [Southern lllinois

University] had some pgol e, particularly Charlotte
dissertation on. And Eastern [Eastern lllinois University] was wayeagued.
So
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DePue: Wel | you have haven’t mHonthwestemel,dyold, he Chi c
those programs.

Bartges:Well DePail would have been the most advanced, but | was dealing mostly with
state schools. Northwestern is private. DePaul is private. Loyola is private. |
didn’t want to deal with privates.

DePue: For what reason?

Bartges:Would it change the makeup of theojact? | was looking at public history, if
you will. Of public institutions. | made that decision when | went to the
colleges and | started with Jill and then from Jill | got to Lori and from Lori |
got to Charlotte and some others; | just decidedtiogoof hand. | said | was
going to start with eight interviews and

DePue: That always happens.

Bartges: There was no bias among the high school people that | interviewed, other than
the fact that their teams were sussfil early on. When | did my initial search
that got me into this anyway, | was looking for information on lllinois. The

only thing | could find was a master’ s t
a woman named Linda Lee Bain and it was completigded off on in 1968.

Well 1968 fits very nicely into a time s
an election year. It s the year King an
much more.

DePue: Probably considered the most traumatic year in Amettidcstory since World
War Il.

BartgessOh easi ly, yeah. Was the Tet Offensive
DePue: Yes.

Bartges:You have a lot going on, so | took from that starting point which was the last
thing that | could find in print about girls high school basketball t6719vhich
was the first state tournament. So there you have the embodiment of a birth,
growth and maturation of a sport. That'’

DePue: | might make sure that | understand, your focus is high school and public
universities?

BartgessThe focus was initially high school and
kind of wandered a little bit. As you know oral historians can do.

DePue: And | ' m here today.

Bartges:| talked to the collegiate coaches | talked to becausanted to see how they
were dealing with staffing, with filling their teams, when lllinois had no
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pipeline of trained players. Where did you get your players? What kind of skill

level did they have? Did you compete against other teams, back to the GAA,

the play days, the sport days? So these pressures are pushing down from the

collegiate level on the IHSA, and Title IX is pushing sideways on the IHSA;

|l " m going to say this even though it sou
poop out? What ihe IHSA going to do? They have got to come up with

something down here.

DePue: lllinois is one of those states that has this kind of dichotomy of identity, because
you’ve got the huge metropolitan area of
y 0 U’ v ewngtaté. Did you manage to balance those two parts out?

Bartges:l tried to. You know, natwurally because
there. | still knew a lot of the people who were coaching in those areas. Some
of them were kids that Iplayd agai nst . But they weren’t

teams at the time. Obviously, | interviewed my two coaches. One was because

she was the coach at the time we went to the state tournament. The other was

out of respect for what this woman did and whatsliear t ed, because sh
one who started the program at Hinsdale South. Then | interviewed the coach at
Downers South who, although she wasn’t t
on top of it within a year. She had been there for a long peribchef The

coach at Fremd was one of the state coaches just like my second high school

coach. |talked to Arlene Mulder who was at Niles West. She had a team that

was very successful and a team we had played against and beaten, but had a

different profile back then, a much more white collar kind of a team even

though according to her they were kind of a blue collar team. They had a lot

more money so their experiences were a little bit different. She was a different

interview. She was the Mayor of Arlitmn Heights when | interviewed her

back in 2004, 2005. Sterling was one of the state tournament schools.

Washington, that Ray Torry from Washington, was one of the state schools.

DePue: Are any of these urban schools?

Bartges:Define urban.

DePue: Chicago.

Bartges:No. Sue, what did | say her name was? Not Strong.
DePue: Well, | have Sue Heinrickson

Bartges:Sue Franklin. Sue Franklin was the coach at Fenger, which was the public
school <city champion in *“7T7. I have not

DeRue: Do you think that might have skewed the results any?

Bartges:N o , | don’ t . Not based on the other thi
Il " m still trying to work that out becaus
Franklin played for Garlotte West at Southern and the coach from Mattoon,
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Linda Blades, who was one of the schools that qualified for the 1977Linda

Blades, Connelly is her married namshe was a rookie coach but she played

for Sue Strong, who was the coach at Sterling. §apayou have this

connection and | can’'t erase those I|lines
needed to just go with it.

DePue: We | | I don’t think you want to be erasi
it then is putting together a list of cgt@ns or a methodology in how you want
to go through this process.

Bartges:For my project?
DePue: Yeah.

Bartges:Uh-hmm, | tried to think about what | wanted to do, and one of the things |
wanted to do was illustrate how backwards lllinois was thetieatime, and
then be able to eventually come back to
You know, the Virginia Slimés ay i ng, “We’ ve come a | ong
used to be the marketing tool for the Virginia Slims tennis tour.

DePue: Well, let meiner j ect here and put on the histor.i
You are starting with this statement that lllinois is behind. What did you do in
terms of being able to prove that that was the case?

Bartges:| did some research on a series of stags) took, what | would consider

primarily the Midwest states: Wisconsidi don’t remember i f Min
part of it— Michigan, Wisconsin, lowa, Missouri. Any state that touched

1T Tinois. So that’' s where Tennessee and
Kentucky touches 1 Illinois, Tennessee doe
t hat group of schools and |I did some res
What | came up with was dates that they had added basketball. Not all of them.
Wisconsinhd n’ t . |l don’t think Michigan had.

of me on that.
DePue: When you say basketball, in what respect they have added basketball?

BartgessThat t hey had interscholastic basketball
it was five players, six players. That they had basketball. States like Kentucky
and Tennessee and lowa and Missouri, surprisingly enough, had girls basketball
back in the *20s. And, for a period of
i n thend 2tOlsen Masket ball went away and i
usually the *70s.

DePue: With the exception of lowa?

8 Virginia Slims, a brand of cigarettes especially marketed to women at the time.
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Bartges:l owa was consi stent. They kept basketba
date. That was the only state, | think, thatl done that. | could be wrong; |
don’t have my notes in front of me. Ken
back again 1in, Il think, “75. 1975 seems
Title IX was passed in 1972, there was a three year period @fdim
I mpl ement ati on. Whil e our school i n Hin
required by |l aw to do that. So 75 is Kk
because that was the three year period from passage to implementation. I think
Indianabroupt it back in *75. Ohi o was a | it
s ame. Wisconsin didn’t start until, It

DePue:

system; they started with three classes, which was huge. None of the other

states had classes. So ClashRss AA, Class AAA, based on size of the

school . Agai n, |l owa was consistent. I o
wasn’t until the ' 90s. I think it was t
from six-player ball to fiveplayer ball and then eated classes.

Well, my recollection in growing up lowa, at that time was the bigger the school
system, the | ess |likely they had girl s’
going in these small rural communities.

Bartges:Yeah. It was entertament. | can remember listening to the radio in Ames

DePue:

Bartges:|

when this conversatierand the conversation went on for quite a while, |

mean, so t his wo ultlidgteningto peoplb eakkimto a radd, ‘4, ‘
show and say, “ Why do myshouldwee keeaset- t o chan
six basketball for girls?” And these pe
“Wel |, I want to be able to watch twelve
(laugh)

How can you argue with such logic?

m t hionknyrsge!l f, “What is the matter with
of that kind of reasoning. But you're r
much geared towards small towns. It was a part of the community fabric. It

was part of their culture. Inew that from going to school there because | had

friends from these little towns and we would go to the state tournament and it

was phenomenal . To think back on my 111
knowledge of downstate. So | tried very hard.uMmow, Mattoon was easy

because Mattoon was one of the eight schools that went to the first state
tournament . But Arcola, you know, I ma d
basketball coach, Nancy Stiff who was at Arcola and she retired the next year.

So my timing on this was just about right. But, | tried to make sure that | was
representative. I didn’t have somebody
mind is the lack of African Americans that | interviewed that would have been

involved in basketbafrom a coaching standpoint. | tried really hasthis is

where the city connection comesHmoget-1 " m not going to be at
remember hernamet he coach from Marshall. She’ s
She’s a famous coach whdowwut dnit &adel a
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she’s very shy. I don’t know her so tha
interview Charlotte Lewis from Peoria and who was a native of Peoria and then
went and played for Jill Hutchison at lllinois State.

Bartges:This is a different Charlotte. Charlotte was a member of the 1976 Olympic
team, the first Olympic team for women’s
Americans on that team. Il " m so thankful
she died two years later.

DePue: How about putting together the list of questions or the themes that you wanted
to pursue?

Bartges:| tried to break it into three parts. One was biographical and | tried to identify
differences and commonalities and so, like you did with me,lesk their
name, where they are from. | did not ask birth year because | was afraid
i nterviewing some of these women that th
that it might be too personal, because some of them are +gotice . So | didn
want to be direspectful. So what | did ask them was what year they graduated
from high school. Based on that, then | kind of extrapolate out approximately
when they are born. | would ask what their educational level was. What their
degrees are in. Did they evdayp industrial league ball. Did they play sports,
athletics, in high school. And, if so, was it interscholastic; were you are playing
against other people. Was it pldgys. Was it GAA. Was it what they call
class competitions: freshman, sophomoreigy senior. Those kinds of things.
All of that went into the composite. Did they have military service. Were they
Girl Scouts. Stulff like that.

DePue: What was the relevance in asking about military service and Girl Scouts and
things like that?

Bartges: | also asked them if they had any activity during the civil rights era. | wanted to
see what kinds of influences they had, or interests. | asked the two men that |
interviewed if they were Boy Scouts. | think that scouting was a movement that
wasst | | strong during this period. I don
have a sense of that. But | think that it goes into sort of a team building kind of
mentality. A remarkable number of them were. Some were activélin 4

DePue: Well, did you find many with military experience?

Bartges: Two that were military brats and so they considered that their military
experience. The only military experience was with the men.

DePue: And you would have been interviewing people that were probablgenéiaring
the time we had a dratft.

Bartges:Yes. Yes.

DePue: Okay.
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BartgesBut , we weren’t drafting women.

DePue:

Yeah, exactly.

Bartges:But, they were also in a period of time where they could have volunteered to do

some other stuff. | knew people Bera woman, Dr. Ann Lamb, who would
have fit into the older end of the spectrum of the people that | interviewed. She

wasaWACduring World War |1. So

DePue: Did you pursue, and again this is a delicate-ehsuspect | know the answer
did you pursueheir sexuality?

Bartgessl didn’'t ask them personally about sexua
had before in terms of how taboo that subject really is and how scary, | guess, it
I s . |l > ve had conversatiombspomts t h ot her p
sociologists and other sport historians
because, quite frankly, myadviset don’t know that | ever
don’t know that she would have been the
perspedte from somebody else who was gay. The overwhelming response is
“No, don’t ask them that."?’

DePue: From your people ..?

BartgesFr om my <col |l eagues. Yes. Someti mes it
when you go through all of my interviews, almostrmayl interviews were at
peopleshomes, so, ‘“This is my husband so an
t his’ . You have me down under my mai den
were single. But | didn’t ask it. Il do
know how .. most of these people have a |
like to keep in a certain way. Not everybodyisds don’t know i f com
with yourself is the right phraseor j ust doesn’t <care the w
the shield of workig in affirmative action so, | have a different background and
also |I"m just enough younger than most o
experience is different, my social experience is different. |1 would like to go
back and ask in somet warysl’ | Il a@awer th&wne w
to do that. Obviously with some of them
ask though-not t o nai l it intewaspetBiothayoul h&
a sense that maybe team seobafdarsof wer en’t a
homosexuality?” Or, “What were your tho
homosexuality as it relates to sports being added? Was there an influence, a
fear ?” There was this very specific que
themwerek e, “ No, no."” You know very short,
of people said, Yeah, they did feel that that influenced team sports in particular.

DePue: Okay. Anything else on the methodology that we should talk about before we
get into what you disared in this process?

SWAC: Women’s Ar my dwarp,sised iomean infimitedmerombat roles.
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Bartges:

DePue:

Bartges:

DePue:

Bartges:

Uh-hm, the only other thing | would say..
parts. | dealt with the personal. | dealt with their professional, what their own
experiences were. So it sort of situates them in the discouaseontext of as

an expert or as a neophyte or as what their level of involvement was. Then,

because of that professional experience, what their assessment about certain

guestions wer e. That would be the third
changed he sporting experience?’ “How do vy«
changes made in the state of lllinois at the high school level after Title IX was
passed?” And, how they categorized them
t hemsel ves. S mowehowotd answér ehain. Sbmedohthemm  k
j umped, |l eapt i mmedi ately, |l " m a pioneer

didn’t view their role as very important
assessment of the role of the IHSA was in terms of eitherefuntp or holding

back, resisting the addition of sports. Why they felt that that was successful.

The answers were pretty consistent.

What were the answers in that respect?

In regard to resistance, almost all of them said that the IHSAawas

impediment initially. That had changed. But initially it was an impediment and
the reason it was an impediment was because the IHSA answers to its
constituency which were the member schools. The member schools, of course,
are administered, governdthwever you want to say it, by principals, athletic
directors and those are the people, the administrators that you see in the IHSA

the voting members. Those principals an
athletics in the gym. It was one thing dwyhad a pool. You could only swim
for so | ong. Or in most schools, the do

talking about suburban Chicago and Chicago schools. Almost unilaterally that.
Ann Murray from Centralia, phenomenal basketball town. &mie Orphan
Annies, which is their nickname.

You have to love that nickname.

l't’s one of the unique ones. The Or phan
basketball program. I don’t know if thi
recent history, they were the winningest basketball program in the state of

'l linois, ever. They had more victories

know if that is still true. Ann Murray wasand | think you listened to her

Ann was one of theggeople who came in [from] out of state. She had a

completely different experience growing up. She is from Texas and she went to

Bayl or . She played basketball at Bayl or
was coaching when | was playing in high schadhe was already done with

the graduate degree by then. So, her senior year at Baylertold me this, |

almost felloutof mychars he said, “Well you probably
and you may not know the diffemsohce. "’ S
my knowledge She sai d, “My senior year in col Il

assistant and that graduate assistant ca
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which was big time women’s and PE <col
Conradt . ”liKemd TYovashave got to be ki
Well, Jodi Conradt was a long time head coach at the University of Texas. So
here is |little Ann Murray who comes to |
worked with Jodi Conradt. You know, her expades are going to be

different. So she felt the IHSA was very behind.

| eg
ddi

DePue: | want to take a step back and have youexpldine cause | don’t thin
understand and anybody who would be listening to-tlwkat exactly, the
IHSA, was. Who did it ensist of and what did they do?

n answer al | of t h

Bartgessl don’t know t hat a
k of his name, I  wa

I c
directorandhewasl can’t t hin
DePue:l don’t know that weesdardyve t o have the na

BartgessOK. Wel I, an executive director and then
assistant executive director and that would have been Ola Bundy. She was the
person who was going to be charged with
that fell into this organization, the IHSA.

DePue: And they got there how?
Bartges:Your guess is as good as mine. | have no idea.
DePue: Elections among school board superintendents?

Bartges:N o , |l don’t think so. TheThdsehBoss doesn’ t
answer to the IHSA.

DePue: Are they political appointees?

Bartges:l don’t think so. I don’t know how t hey
It would be a good question to ask. | asked Ola that but she was hired by the
guy who was th executive director. Maybe there is some kind of Illinois High
School Association of .. 1 don’t know how

DePue: But apparently once they got there, the decisions they are making have a big
impact on all these peoplewhor e participating Iin women’
state.

Bartges:Absolutely. And, again, | could be wrong about, you know which is the tail or
the mouth of the dog, but the schoelthe athletic directors and the principals
are all part of this organizan. So, Dave Bartlett, who is the athletic director at
Macomb High, is part of a membership of the IHSA. The membership is
governed by the executive council function of the IHSA. If the IHSA passes
rul es, | '—a npdr eatgtayi ns, u H¢hetHSA passesputesand i v e
the member schools have to follow them.
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DePue: | t sounds |li ke there aren’t term | i mits

Bartges:Oh no, no, no, no. The guy who was in power back then was in power for a
long time. He was there when bw playing and he was there a long time.

DePue: He was there pr&itle IX and postTitle IX?

Bartges:Y e a h . He’ s dead now or | would have int
I's there now, Marty somebody, is a Title
somavhere in there, and so he has grown up with a different example.

DePue: So going back to one of the things we talked earlier about this decision to allow
men to coach women’s teams: that was an

Bartges:Yep. As far as | can tell. There was decision to be made because the women
had screwed it up.

DePue: Are there other decisions or kinds of things that the IHSA would have been
involved in that had an impact across the entire state that you can think of?

Bartges:Oh sure. Classes.

DePue Okay.

Bartges:Uh-h mm ... Now, the I HSA | will say probabl
National Federation of High School [U.S. Department of Education] rules as
wel | . I me an, I don’t think that they <c
how classs are determined. Where state championships are held.

DePue: Would they be involved in the training of officials?

BartgesWe |l | , t hey are now. I don’t know if the

But to be certified, it used to bel do knowthe answer to this it use to be

DGWS-Di vi si on of Gi r | -sin AAHRERDVMohick inthes Sport s
American Alliance for Physical Education Health and Dance. DGWS wrote the

rules; this was a question that | asked my interviewees. That was aahation

organization. In 1971, DGWS came up with a set of experimental rules. Then

they came up in 74 again with a set of
all the time—they want to change something, they want to emphasize some

point or whatever-so theydo it through their rule book. Well, one of the

problems with women’s basketball was the
how do you have people officiate games w
—which rule book are we going under? Are wengainder DGWS or are we

going under what they calll call them NAGS-the older ladies from physical
education. Don’t <call it that. It s NA
Women in Sport, or something like that. And then there was the AAU

[Amateur Athletic Union] version, which was a long standing version of rules.

The thing with the rule books was DGWS and NAGWS made a ton of money
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DePue:
Bartges:

DePue:

Bartges:
DePue:

Bartges:

off their rule books. That was a money maker for them. So there was always
this fight over whose rules are ggito be followed. One of the questions |

asked was, “Do you think the experimenta
getting sort of the ‘plate set’ for some
girl s’ basketball ?” Beclphas ® knomwith |  t hat
the officiating. Now, you get You did
rated. And you could be, Il don’t know w

see what they are. But you could be a nationally rated official antiaeto
meet the requirements; it was a real certification. But the women did that more

than the men. No w, if you |l ook at the |
started on the I HSA officials. Remember
neckofthewods, it’'s hard to get officials.

was horrible when | walked in a gym and | saw the seventh grade science
teacher was officiating my game. | thought that was a conflict of interest. |

thought that was unethical. So,evim | woul d say to the AD,
these people in our gym. I mean it’s no
and find a woman. Try and find a woman.

Try and find people of color who are officiatingou know, and get some
diversity in your officiating crew. Dave did a good job of trying to do that. |
mean he really did try to work with me on that because | thought it was
important for our kids to see that.

David?
Dave Bartlett.

Bartlett, okay. | know you have mentioned that name before. Are we at the
point now where we can start talking about the things that you discovered in the
process of doing this?

Sure.
Where should we start?

That ' squestiog.d thidk one of the things | found, almost without

exception, was that| wish | had that summaryabout half of the women were

married— about half of them, there was no indication or statement that they

were married. The men were both matriéObviously you picked up on this
straight away when you said, “Where are
reason why there are no men interviewed.
influence and the two men that | did interview, Dick Barry from Cartliéigh
School, was an anomaly. Hewassoftdf don’t know he woul d p
way—nbut sort of in the wilderness, if you will, in Carthage. Ray Tory, was the

athletic director at Washington High School because Jan Smith was dead. | had

to interview Dt k . He’ s a |l egend in girls’ hi gh
glad to be able to interview him. But the rest of them, all of them have
obviously a minimum of a Bachelor’s Degr
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Degrees. The women who labeled themseere liberal or more proactive in

trying to get change for girls’ sports,
were not from lllinoisswhi ch as an I |l 1l inois historian
hear—but they were people who moved here for jobs and thogaeare

primarily going to be .. Well, an exampl e

coach at Hinsdale South. Carol Murray. Jill Hutchinson. Lori Ramsey.
Charlotte West. Phoebe Scott, who was the chair of the physical education
department at lllinois Statand who was influential in a variety of different
ways. Jo Streit, Joliet West.

DePue: You started with the question: What is it about lllinois that caused it to be much
later to this show than all these other surrounding states? What did yom find i
that? What were your conclusions?

Bartges:My conclusions were that the IHSA was slow to respond to the spirit of the law
with Title IX. In places where teams came on quickly, like in my high school
and some of the other suburban high schools in thbero part of the state, it
wasn’'t because of the I HSA that sports w
from parents and administrators who were more progressive than some of the
other administrators. They had more facilities. They had more moneiend
had a larger student population that they could funnel into athletics. Facilities
was a major issue. Almost unilaterally, the people talk about facilities and when
are you going to practice. Even my own experience with the gym: at the time
we onlyhad one gym at Hinsdale South. We practiced at six in the morning
because they had PE classes in the gym a
everywhere else in the state. The boys had practice after school.

DePue: Well, this is something thatyouovu | dn’t be able to det er mi
study you conducted, but wouldn’t that s
Indiana and Ohio and Minnesota and Missouri and all these other states?

Bartges:It would. Some of those other states though, hadahist fr om back in t
of doing it. So there is a memory there
grandparent’s memory that we did this be
it would bedmdratdbitadeéecan

DePue: So part of it is thedlgacy of the traditions the state used to have.

Bartges:!l t hi nk so. |l don’t know that | would h

first started looking at it, but it certainly sort of panned out that way. Where it
had been accepted before, it vimas a difficult leap for them to accept it again.

As | mentioned, lllinois is one of the three most populous states in terms of
towns that are five thousand are less. Most of those towns want to hang on to
their schools. They try everything that they gassibly do to hang on to their
schools because, | think the general consensus within small towns is, when you
lose your school your town dies.
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DePue: School consolidation is an extremely traumatic experience for these small
communities.

Bartges:Yeah. So in order to maintain the norm, what was the norm. They had to look
at, Okay, where can we put our money? Well, what parent of a male basketball

player is going to say, “Surppgretamt our s
if it had been reversedf women had been in that situation, what parent of a

female player is going to say, “Sure, ta
ti me” ? That's a difficult transition an

implemented administratively and the adistrators were not committed to
this. Lori Ramsey talked about that pretty extensively and Ray Torry talks
about it too because he was, as a principal, party to those conversations.

DePue: From your explanation here, was this a surprise to you thatibedtéinois had
this pattern of so many small communities, that that would be an impediment to
adopting the change? Was that one of the things you discovered?

Bartges:That because they were a small community it was an impediment?

DePue: Because lllinoisvas so dominated by the number of small communities, these
autonomous governmental bodies, if you will.

Bartges:Y e a h . Il n some ways it was. One, becaus
suburban Chicago high school .ttygop&o my exp
We certainly had issues but my experience was totally different than what
somebody from Mattoon or Centralia or Arcola had.

DePue: Different as in, you guys were farther along in the process?

Bartges:We were. Just because as soonas TitwkXs passed in ' 72, i n
Hinsdale South added girl s’ basketball
Downers South did. |l " m trying to rememb
that soon or if they added about a year or two later. Not sur¢ Bboger.

DePue: Maybe you mentioned this already, but why was Hinsdale so quick to adopt the
change?

Bartges:| think that there was pressure from parents. They talk about that; some of the
coaches talk about pressuring from parents and that when d ditdot has a
group of parents that are willing to be vocal and push for something, and it

becomes a populist idea, it’s really har
DePue: Pressure equally from the men and the women?
Bartges:!l t seems | i ke i tmomsthatweateont pitketikgsayinglet | ot o f

my girls play ball. But most of the people who were involved in Title IX
research or in Title IX preservation say their biggest, biggest supporters are men
with daughters.
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DePue: We | | I > m t hi nwopensgnallexperigncet Bvenytlough your
Dad obviously wanted your brother to be the athlete in the family, if he was the
main booster of your high school basketball team, it was obvious that he wanted
that opportunity for you. Would that be a fair assesnt?

Bartges:Uh-h m. Not initially because my freshman

know, he was .. What ended up happenin
Well, my sophomore year when he really realized that | was playing sports and
t hat ' all heveaatédlwas sports, | think, back in his life. Kind of like me

i n terms of being competitive. He st
the time | was in high school. Got involved with basketball, as you see from the
pictures,andreallwas a supporter. Now, on the
supportive. It would be, “How come vy
didn’t do this better?” You know, I
home?”

DePue: Well for a while there it sounddike the script of Hoosiers. If you are familiar
with that movie?

Bartges:Oh yeah. So | would have not have put my father at the forefront of saying,
Woohoo, | et’s add girls sports.

DePue: Okay.

Bartges:But | know there were other men that did. Amidhout the assistance from
t hem, it wouldn’t have happened as qu

DePue: How much was the lag in Illinois due to the personalities on the IHSA?

Bartges:Huge. Huge. | think that when you listen to the coaches, not necessarily the
officials, but whernyou listen to the people that coached in this state and who
have been here fromthestaitve ' r e not tal king peopl e
situation after it was developed, we’
of change, culturalchangt hey ddén’ats <adyairl y as | ' m
easy to heahat the IHSA, the people in charge of the IHSA at that time, were
an i mpedi ment . While they might have
sports and of adding sports and giving opportunities fds,dlmey were really
more interested in maintaining the status quo, and play days were fine with
them. You know, go do your postal tournament and your GAA, which is what
Ola Bundy was originally hired for was to run the GAA for the IHSA.- Uh
h mm, bt sfaAl s. That that was an i mp

DePue: Are you willing, or can you flesh out some of the personalities more? Who they
were and the kind of positions they took?

Bartges:Well, to me the ones that really kind of rise to the top in terms of aseassf
the statewide situation are the collegiate coaches. Jill Hutchinson. Charlotte
West. Lori Ramsey.
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DePue:

Bartges:

DePue:

Bartges:

DePue:
Bartges:
DePue:

Bartges:

But | ' m talking about the people on the

Oh, |l " m sorry. We | | w h e rawmeswas Quinreor di r ect o
Ryan or Fitzhugh, something like that. It was an Irish name like that. Ola

Bundy was the only other person who was there at the time. Eventually you

began to see some other persons. There was another woman. There was a

woman befor€c har | ot t e and she ... 1 think her na
of Charlottes. l > m not sure what her na

Well, you mentioned Ola and | know you spent a long time interviewing her.
What was her frame of reference? Where was she comingpindhese

guestions?

That’' s a good question. Ol a had, and it
know, because a |l ot of heat ... Nobody rea
Ola by name publicly, but the implications are clear, and Ola haido& power,

i f you talk to the high school coaches.

power.

Was this a full time job for her?
Yes.
Paid position?

Paid position. This was her job. The person she replaced in 1968/&ras

more repressive. Ola was a step in the right direction and it was purely by
accident . According to her, the directo
in favor of sports. But other people that | interviewed said that Ola came

around to thatiew. When she did come around, she embraced it whole hog.

After a certain point in time, and it wa
there, that it dawned on Ola that this was happening. It had already happened,

and you need to get on board.nHiof like | said: Become a part of the solution

or part of the probl em. Well, these peo
the train was leaving the station and if she wanted to have any part of that credit,

she better get on it. But Ola saidttkhe had a limited amount of resources and

that she was an-atill employee, which is true. You know, she had no tenure;

she had nothing to protect her and this was her job. She had left high school.

She taught at the high school level herself, hadhigh school teaching to take

this job with the IHSA, figuring that, like many people, you can make change

from within, that that’s the only way to
amount of truth to that. | have found that myself. That thatiéyrthe only

way to change the system. But she said she would do things to, you know, sort

of ... I can’t think of the word that | wa
the IHSA. She had no secretary, according to her. So anything that she did, she
had to do herself. She couldn’t wuse or |
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DePue:

Bartges:

DePue:

she was sitting there doing her nails sh
funds she had limited where she could put her focus.

I didn’t have ac cékethat.tltovoull bedagggol s and t h
thing for somebody to go the IHSA and really do some investigation into the
budgets. Right now, Sue Heinrickson would be the person at the IHSA to

contact . Sue is a protégé oheisOl a’s but
somebody who is born and raised in lllinois and who came up through the
system. She’s probably a Ilittle bit you

and participating because of these thing
wave, you knowpf feminism and of athleticism and sport that this project

doesn’ t t adpring tinetraoscript(evieo.t Betd Sauser would beah

person now.)

Anything that surprised you in going through these interviews?

It kind of surprisedne, particularly with what my own experience was and what
| saw and then what | had learned over the course of the interviews, how very
humble most of these women were, | think probably for two reasons. One
would be the age group of the women. Theyratewhat | would call chest
thumpers, for lack of a better phrase; not somebody who is going to toot their
own horn. Also because a number of them lived their lives and worked
professionally in relatively small communities and they felt that this was thei
job and this was what they were supposed to be doing. Unilaterally, their
interest was in providing opportunities for girls.

There is no one point in time, if you listen to the tapes as a composite, that
they were aware that things were changing, tifete was now something that
was going to force a change. Most of them felt it was a positive change for
girls. And that they wanted to be able to provide those opportunities. Some of
them didn’t get paid to begibeginwitht h. Mo s
't wasn’t unti/l | ater that they got paid
asked about the Title IX question and we kind of went off on a tangent and |
said, “Well, how much did you get paid?”
Sheai d “I didn’t get paid for three or fo
said, “Didn’t you think you should get p
to me.” She says, “Then | found out tha
Somethingverysni | ar t o that. She says, “I|I went
know, do you think I could get paid?’ A
don’t know why | didn’t ask sooner .’ Bu
attitude and that kind of goes to the Giclb®t, military thing. Although these
people would have been, |l i ke you said, u
desire to provide an educational opportunity was overriding.

Were the assumptions you started with validated or overturned by the
disaoveries that you found?
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Bartges:| would say the assumptions were validated for the most part. They were pretty
much all in the same area, the same scale in terms of the IHSA and them being
behind. They were pretty much, although not unilaterally, abjferpoint
without being |l ed there; | mean | asked
exactly to pinpoint like that was the impetus. Some of them went so far as to
say, without this legislation lllinois would have been even further behind than it
alrealy was. | think in particular Charlotte West talks about that. But Lori
Ramsey talks about it too. That without that single bit of legislation in the
Education Act of 1972, lllinois would have been even further behind. So that
validated my thought orh&it. Most of them could not, or did not, or would not.
| talk about them being humble. | asked them how they would label themselves
and very few labeled themselves as pioneers. Most of them labeled themselves
as people who had a job to do and they waiedo a good job and they

wanted the girls to have opportunity. T
somebody.. I'f you want to bring that oppo
make you then a pioneer? They don’t mak
DePue: Well, youusedy i r | s’ high school basketball in
impact of Title IX. How would you describe that impact on American society
as a whol e? Or maybe that’s wunfair to e
lllinois.
Bartges:N o , | d o nl'think thaty just kke is Ibinois, lllinois is after all, going

to be a microcosm of the nation as one of fifty states. But you have resistance

to things and pockets of resistance anywhere you go. Title IX has not been
uniformly applied or administr e d . That’' s because of how
was. What they call the lettei@ear Colleague letters from the OCiRe

papers—which are every few years there is a letter put out that is a directional

thing. The appointment and the implementatioiidé 1X is very political.

During the Bush Il administration Title IX was almost strangled to death. That

was- what year are we in now?2000 to 2008, that eight year period of time,

they tried to assassinate it; that was purely political.

So you hae this thing, afootbato f cour se t hathss a bad
entity called Title IX that is bantered back and forth. It becomes a way to try to,
it’s a political tool, to win the hearts
wrestler and your programhhse en cut , and your administr
we' ' re cutting this program because Title
number of women’s and men’s sports.’” Wh
going to believe that. But when you look at the reality ahi¢ reality is, if fifty
percent of your students are women, don
compete? And if that opportunity to compete means that you need to cut
somet hing, why are you cutting this spor
behemott hat i s football ? That ' s an adminis
make those decisions. Title I X doesn’t
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DePue:

Bartges:

DePue:

Bartges:

DePue:

| do not know a single proponent of Title I1X in this countrgnd | know a
few—who are proponents of cutting spoit® r me n . l't’s wrong tc
against any group of people. Why would a group of people, in this case women
and proponents of Title IX who also include men, want to discriminate against
anot her group of people aféemsr what we’ ve

antithetical. But administrators, that’
Universitycut-I " m trying to think if it was swi
country, | -ewdan Western dlinogs tabiversity tried to cut

swimming and divingmoney and Title IX and those two things are connected
to that. And that was just this year, this past year.

This iIs impossible to do but I "m going t
and the fight over resources aside, compare the lapdscao f women’ s at hl
in 1972 to what we have today.

(laugh) If you were an archeologist, and you took a slice of the earth, 1972

would be thePaleolithic—-1 ™ m not a n-the paednwlogy phgse,ydu

know, er a. Andl nowawr mehge i h méab it s e
beyond belief. One of the womes think it was Chris Voeltz who was a coach

at Main West or South and then went on to be an athletic director; she coached

and she works for the wormaditmest sports fou
eloquently, that next to the nineteenth amendment, Title 1X is the single most

i mportant piece of Il egislation in the tw

Because?

Because of how much impact it had unilaterally in this cqunitris about this

country because other countries don’t ha
kids have now, they fly to their contest
wagon with six other people, fifteen tennis rackets and a brown sack lunch.

You know, they fly to these places. Some schools have charter jets. You have a

place like Penn State or Michigan or those big time football schools, they are

flying to these places. When | was coaching at Charlotte, we used to drive two

vans. métter if wa weene driving to Clemson, which was about two

hours away or to Southern Miss, who was in our conference, which is about
sixteen hours away, fourteen hours away.
much time with your team. And, you knowgetimeal money, the scholarships,

access to medical care, access to academic advising, access to emergency

money i f you need it. Il f you are a need
academic scholarship, if you have a family emergency the NCAA hasla fu

that will pay for you to fly from Macomb to California if there is a death in the

family.

Everything you'  ve been talking about wup
on the experiences of the individual players, the individual athletes.TiHa

IX had an impact on society at large?
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Bartges:Oh yeah. Yeah, | think in a lot of ways. From my generation forward in
tebms—I " m saying gener at i—euw expdriencessse f our t een
completely different than the experiences of the petbaiel interviewed.
Now, that’s not to say that they are a
somet hing that here’s this ideal and t
what | meant about differences across
You still can create a stratified society within the gender and also within the
other gender too because you have those pressures. But it has impacted our
society. As | said, Title IX was originally about education, so look at the
number of women veterarians we have. Look at the number of female
medical doctors that we have. Look at the number of female firefighters that we
have. Look at the number of female judges we have and lawyers and
politicians. |l can’t | mewiwegathe |t woul d
impact of that based on the number, the sheer number, of people that have been
Il mpacted by it because of access to educ

| w
he
t h

DePue: Ok a vy, Il m going to turn the question jus
BartgessThat ' s fi ne.

DePue: You’'  ve just explained in pretty el n
this evolution or revolution in wh
sports and that’s just part of it. S

study: your focusn particular but also the issue of Title IX and that chapter of

women’ s history.

0q
at

-
> o

e
S
(0]

Bartges:We | | Il m a sport historian. There are
probably have a I|little bit different vie
through a lens that is a sport lens. | always try to make sure and articulate like |
did, that Title IX was not about sports but ultimately the impact it had was huge
in sport. But it has had an equally large impact on the academic side of the
house. Ithnk whet her you’re an ant hropol ogi st
a psychologist, that you’'re going to | oo
going to have different interpretation.

DePue: Well, | probably was too coy here. | know that you aye/tin a Ph.D. program
at the University of lllinois, right?

Bartges:Uh-hm.

DePue: And your Master’s Degree was in history
Bartges:Yes.
DePue: And what’'s your program that you are pur

)

Bartges:| m i n t gyeandlcammengyiheakhaepartment. My advisor is a
woman named Dr. Synthia Sydnor.
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DePue: And why are you there?

Bartges:l " m in the kinesiology department becaus
anything to do with me. sadWmaegacivil initialdl
service employee and | get free tuition and fees at any state institution that | can
get into. So when | finished my Master’
take advantage of this. | > dabe stupid n

administrator, | felt it would be best if | had a Ph.D. or if | wanted to change
gears and get back in to teaching, | could do that. When | looked at schools |
went to lllinois and | talked to people, | talked to sociologists. |talked to the
kinesiobgy department, and talked to history. The history department says

there is nobody here for you to study wi
a guy that does baseball as sort of an a
history.

DePue: Do you haveany speculation as to why they were saying that? You certainly
must have jumped to some conclusions or observations.

Bartges:Well, | thought it was ignorant. How do you not consider sport as part of the
history of society? | mean it goes back to thedks.

DePue:l s t hat essentially what they were telldi
enough?
BartgessThat s t he message | got, that it was no

going to do this, you need to do it out of a different departm&here is this
factor: traditionally sport history is taught from the PE or the kinesiology

depart ment . It wouldn’t have necessari/l
depart ment because PE controlled athletdi
the physial education departments that controlled athletics. And so they had

their own |ittle version of history. Bu

other sport historians who are from history departments because of the
methodology of history and alsbe lens of history.

Il am not somebody who studies the body
education person and I ’'m not a kinesiolo
thing at lllinois is that the kinesiology department has four different areas of
study so they have training and they have bio mechanics; they have the medical
program; and then they have what they call cultural and pedagogical
interpretative studies. So you can look at pedagogy, again which is going to
include movement. You can looktae cultural aspect of it which is what | do.

Or the interpretive studies, which | do
tidy as being in a history department, b
anything.

DePue: But it still sounds likeyour e vi ewed as somet hing of a
department.
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Bartges:

DePue:

Bartges:

DePue:

Bartges:

DePue:

Bartges:

DePue:

Bartges:

Oh, no question. No question. This semester | actually had time to take a

history class. | think part of me wanted to do it because | wanted to show that,

yes, this is relevantBut the classwasl have a minor in gender
studies- and so the class fit in to that minor. But the woman who taught it is

very good and she’'s been very interested

doing. So, that was kind of validating.

Ok ay. ElI'lyn, we’ve been at this for a |
believe it or not.

lt’s a good thing I have another job bec
So |l et’s wrap up with a cbwHpwwouldf | arger

you define yourself today after all of these many experiences you have had?

War torn. | would describe myself as somebody who is comfortable with
mysel f. Somebody who’”s had a journey, u
Butprom bl 'y, and | say, well, that’s rather

a journey like mine | just had the opportunity to put a voice to it. And people
who were supportive of me doing that, you know.

But | et’”s move aheadwa c¥apleeofoyewposnr f
Would you find more pleasure being called professor or coach?

At this point in my life, professor. Retiring from coaching was a choice that |
made and when | did, it gave nxlket he oppo
passing on the torch to | ook at somet hin

how I look at it. | could never have done this if | was still coaching. | would be
at practice right now.

Okay. So this was an important opportunity to be ablmake this contribution
for you as well then.

Yeah. 't is. And it became more so, wh
trite, and | never really thought about it in this way. But after that bus accident

and in looking for things and howynmind works, | think it became more so

after that because | realized, whew, man, dodged one there. But then I thought

about the people who have had an influence on my life, whether they knew it or

not, and how important their stories were. | reallykhint hat "' s ki nd of w
history is about. There are certainly p
able to explore and you touched on them.

|l " m very interested in gender history
[Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual & Transgaer] history. There is certainly a culture
within sport that is so phobic, sethobic and phobic from straight people; that
is sad. There are a lot of people that have lived their entire professional lives in
fear of being fired for who they are. Jlike | said, | was told that | would be
fired and ushered out of the building instantaneously if it was found out that |
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DePue:

Bartges:

DePue:
Bartges:
DePue:

Bartges:

was gay. | know that there are other people that have experienced that and |

think in order for us to advance as a culture internsefx ual i t y, that ' s
somet hing we need to address. Il don’t Kk
address that. | know people who do research on that but most of the research is

completely anonymous and wuntil you start
me . |l am the exact same person | was tw
and in that time your opinion of me has changed. Why? You know, because |

say | have a partner instead of a wife o

| think the two things that will really cimge that for sport, and why this is
importanttosport,is| ' d | ove to tail & tOoDgout aAskit L

Tel |7 i's to get r iMdrriagefActt Ithmk thosesared t he De
probably the two most critical things for a cultural sttt you would see
Il mpact sport. That ' s not a political st

standpoint, | think that you would see a change in maybe seven, eight, nine, ten
years down the pike.

Okay. You have had some important momemtgoiur life, or periods in your
life. One was the death of your mother. The OCR complaint. That accident
that you experienced. Do you have any regrets at looking back at all of this?

Laura and | talk about that some times. | would say tlztisranother big

point in my life because without her support, | could not have done the things
that | did. | could not have filed that complaint without her support because of
how it impacted us.

It closed doors but opened others.

tdi dn”t open a |l ot of door s.

Okay.

It didn’t open a | ot of doors at all unl
a door opening; I don’t . But what it di

different way, a different level of activity thhas to be done by somebody. It

goes back to what | said about you become a part of the problem or part of the

solution. Is it the ideal way to handle things? Hell, no. That is not the choice

t hat any |l ogical, sane pleagevernmemtant s t o s
compl aint against my employer.” Hel | 0o?
becomes a point where you‘ve had enough.
yes, | would say that is an important point of my life because it showed me |

was $rong enough to do what was right without really a care for what the

consequences were. | think when you get to that point in life that a lot of people
won't take that step. Does that make me
unemployed person which a& me very unhappy. But | would do it again in a

second. | would do it again and | would do it again and again and again. And |

will do it again if | have to.
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DePue: Okay. This has been a very interesting interview for me and | obviously
approach ias the story you had to tell, the study that you did, is an important
one as well because it obviously has a huge impact on the society we live in
today. So I thank you very much for that. Do you have any concluding
comments you would like to make orlesft on?

BartgesWe l I , 1 ' d |li ke to thank you too. You kn
serendipitous and it was just amazing. | was so excited when | heard because |
had been looking for a place to house this collection since | started making i
because | knew that was part of the charge of doing the history part, you know,
collecting the histories. But | wanted a place that was suitable for this
collection. This group of women and the two guys really are phenomenal
across the board. They hadthout knowing it, such a huge impact on our

society and | think you’ ve tried to kind
important.
Culturally it’s very important because

mean, when you look at how the negnthe investment of resources and time
and people that are encompassed by sport to say that sport is not an important
component culturally and socially is to be extremely naive. And how they
unknowingly—and maybe for some of them knowingiympacted thestate of

l'llT'inois in perpetuity is amazing to me.
in their positions. And the amount of time they have spent. The amount of
resources they have spent. They didn’t

work for high school that was over and above their regular jobs and they did it

out of the goodness of their hearts because they wanted to provide opportunity.

That is true altruism to me and, you know, | tried to make a point of thanking

every one ofthemeventfhey weren’t coaches that <coac
opportunities to other girls just like me. And so that builds really a phenomenal

group of people.

l>d |Ii ke to interview some more but, vy
drove more than six thousandles for these twenty six interviews over the
course of the two and a half years that | was working on them. It was just
amazing. What an amazing group of women
are interested in the collection and | hope that we cathgeto happen in the
way that we want to.

DePue:l don’t see anything that'’'s going to sto
BartgesWe l | , t hat’'s good to hear.

DePue: Excellent. Thank you very much Ellyn.

Bartges: Thank you.

(end of recording #2)
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